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General Information
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SOUTH AFRICAN NATIONAL AIDS COUNCIL

NSP FOR HIV,TB AND STIs 2017-2022

The South African National AIDS Council (SANAC) brings
together government, civil society and all other stakeholders
to drive an enhanced country response to the public health
challenge of Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV), tuberculosis
(TB) and sexually transmitted infections (STIs). The Council
is not a juristic person. Under the direction of SANAC, the
government of South Africa created the SANAC Trust as the
legal entity (established by Cabinet) mandated to drive all
SANAC-related activities through the Trust Secretariat.

The NSP provides the strategy and the framework for a
multi-sectoral partnership for South Africa to overcome HIV,
TB and STIs, involving national, provincial and local government, civil society sectors, the private sector, development
partners, all stakeholders and partners in the development,
implementation, monitoring and evaluation of the NSP. The
NSP outlines the goals, objectives and activities that give expression to South Africa’s vision and mission for the period
2017-2022. The NSP also identifies how to strengthen relevant
systems to enable success. All stakeholders have committed
to using the NSP to guide their implementation plans. Together, this will constitute the national response to HIV, TB and STIs.

Specifically, the overall mandate of the Secretariat is to
support the implementation of the National Strategic Plan for
HIV,TB and STIs.

NSP vision:

MAIN OBJECTIVES OF SANAC

A South Africa free from the burden of HIV, TB and STIs

•

NSP mission:

Foster dialogue among government, civil society and all
other stakeholders and oversee the country’s response to
HIV,TB and STIs

•

Advise government on HIV and AIDS, TB and STI policy
and strategy and related matters;

•

Strengthen the governance, leadership and management
of the response to HIV, TB and STIs at national, provincial,
district and local levels

•

Strengthen the multi-sectoral response to HIV, TB and
STIs as a contribution to the overall socio-economic
development of South Africa, including policy review,
programme management and coordination, technical
assistance, capacity building and sectoral support

•

Mobilise resources domestically and internationally
to finance the response to HIV, TB and STIs, including
estimating expenditure and resource needs, fundraising
from domestic and international institutions, including
Treasury, donor coordination and investigating new
sources of funding for the multi-sectoral response and the
National Strategic Plan (NSP)

•

Ensure monitoring and evaluation of progress against
the targets set in the NSP and ensure mid- and endterm evaluations for the NSP. Linked to this, strengthen
strategic information (monitoring and evaluation,
surveillance and surveys, research and knowledge
management) to drive progress towards the achievement
of NSP goals.

•

Create and strengthen partnerships for an expanded
national response in South Africa to HIV, TB and STIs
among government departments and agencies, civil
society and non-governmental organisations (NGOs),
donors of funds, United Nations agencies, the private
sector and people living with HIV,TB and STIs.

South Africa on track to eliminate HIV, TB and STIs as public
health threats by 2030

3.1 The principles guiding the implementation of
the NSP include:
•

A reliance on sound evidence

•

Commitment to protecting and promoting human rights

•

A multi-sectoralapproach

•

A people-centredapproach

•

A response that is inclusive and participatory

•

Ensuring that no one is left behind

While the SANAC Trust Secretariat organizes and
facilitates SANAC plenary meetings and all committee
meetings and processes, the Trust does much more
than
organize
meetings.
The
Secretariat
works with multiple partners in government and
other institutions to deepen the country’s ability
to plan for the short-, medium- and long term.
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3.2 The goals of the NSP 2017-2022 are:

Goal 1:

Accelerate prevention to reduce new HIV,
TB and STIs
- ‘Breaking the cycle of transmission’

Goal 2:

Reduce morbidity and mortality by providing HIV TB and STI treatment, care
and adherence support for all
– ‘90-90-90 in every district’

Goal 3:

Reach all key and vulnerable populations
with customised and targeted
interventions
– ‘Nobody left behind’

Goal 4:

Address the social and structural drivers
of HIV, TB and STIs
– ‘A multi-department, multi-sector
approach’

Goal 5:

Ground the response to HIV, TB and STIs
in human rights principles and
approaches
– ‘Equal treatment and social justice’

Goal 6:

Promote leadership and shared accountability for a sustainable response to HIV,
TB and STIs
– ‘Mutual accountability’

Goal 7:

Mobilise resources to support the
achievement of NSP goals and ensure a
sustainable response
– ‘Spend now, save later’

Goal 8:

Strengthen strategic information to drive
progress towards achievement of NSP
goals
- Data-driven action’
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The NSP also recognises the importance of building
social and service delivery systems for successful
implementation and to overcome bottlenecks.
These ‘cross-cutting system enablers’ are:

•

Focus on social and behaviour change
communication to ensure social mobilisation
and increasing awareness

•

Strong social systems, including strengthening
families and communities, to decrease risks of
transmission and mitigate the impact of the
epidemics

•

Effective integration of HIV, TB and STI
interventions and services

•

Strong information, procurement and supply
chain systems

•

Sufficient human resources required in number
and mix, trained and located where needed.

SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS
Performance Environment
South Africa’s response to HIV, TB and STIs is commendable
given the unwavering investments and commitments made
by government and its stakeholders to ensuring that people
living with HIV (PLHIV) have access to life saving antiretroviral
treatment and live a prolonged healthy life. Government and
stakeholders demonstrated commitment through a series
of five-year National Strategic Plans (NSPs) for HIV, TB
and STIs and treatment policy changes in the past decade.
In 2018, during the implementation of the NSP for HIV, TB and
STIs (2017-2022), former Deputy President Cyril Ramaphosa
announced the implementation of the National Wellness
Campaign “Cheka Impilo’’, to ensure epidemic control. The
overall goals of the campaign are: to initiate an additional
2 million individuals on ART by December 2020; find 80,000
undiagnosed or untreated TB infected individuals in the first
year; intensify non- communicable diseases case finding by
screening 7 million people for diabetes and hypertension,
and intensify STIs screening, diagnosis and treatment.

According to Thembisa v4.2 estimates there are about
7.4 million (12.9% HIV prevalence) of People Living with
HIV (PLHIV) - an estimated 90.5% of people have been
tested and know their HIV status, of which 68% of those
that know their HIV status are on ART and 88% of those
on ART are virally suppressed. The country is performing
well with the first and third 90 targets but there is still a
lot of work to be done to reach the second 90 target.
Performance of the third 90 is dependent on the uptake
of ART (second,) 90 and the current response on the
implementation of the NSP should be on the second 90 to
ensure successful achievement of the 90-90-90 targets.
The NSP target of reducing the number of new HIV infection
to less than 100 000 by 2022 is in line with UNAIDS target of
a 75% reduction from 2010 to 2020. However, given the slow
pace of decline of annual number of new infections to date, it
is unlikely South Africa will be able to meet this target by 2020.
Over the year the number of new cases of mother
to child transmission of HIV (PMTCT) has declined
by 66% since 2010. Increased (PMTCT) ART
Coverage contributed to the observed decline.
South Africa has the largest ART programme with
about 5.4 million adults and children living with HIV on
treatment. In recent years, the programme expanded
with the implementation of ‘test and treat’ guidelines and
domestic resources financed these efforts. In making
sure that people know their HIV status, and are on
treatment the county continued with the implementation
HIV Self-Testing and provision of Pre-Exposure
Prophylaxis (PrEP) to high-risk groups in the population.

development. The Strategy will support the implementation
of the National Strategic Plan for HIV, TB and STIs 2017-2022.
The grant signing of the 2019-2022 funding agreements
with the four selected Global Fund (GF) Principal Recipients
occurred this year. The GF principal recipients for the
period 2019-2022 are Networking HIV/AIDS Community of
Southern Africa (NACOSA), AIDS Foundation South Africa
(AFSA), Beyond Zero and National Department of Health.
The period under review also marks the Mid Term
Review of the NSP. The overall goal of NSP MTR was to
provide an in-depth analysis of the NSP implementation;
with a specific focus on progress made towards
achieving the targets set for each of the eight goals.

Our Vision and
Mission

Vision
Recognised for leadership and
effectiveness in the coordination
of the national response to
HIV, TB and STIs.

Mission
To provide effective leadership
and coordination of the national
multi-sectoral HIV, TB & STIs
response in pursuit of ending AID
in South Africa.

The country continuously stand on strong legal and regulatory
framework which protects individuals affected and infected
with HIV from any forms of violence, discrimination and
stigmatization. As stated under goals 3, 4 and 5 of the NSP,
implementation of programmes targeted to address sociostructural barriers to accessing services, a focus on priority and
key populations, geographical prioritization and promoting
leadership and shared accountability for a sustainable
response to HIV, TB and STIs have been strengthened.
The period under review marks the conclusion of the National
Social Behaviour Change Communication (SBCC) Strategy
9

LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

Reporting

Overarching Mandate
South African National AIDS Council Trust Deed

TR 26.1 Responsibilities of designated accounting officers

The Trust Deed states the objects of the Trust.

over Schedule 3A and 3C public entities to report quarterly
to Executive Authority.

TR 29.3.1 Quarterly reporting on progress against targets

National Strategic Plan for HIV, TB and STIs

in corporate and strategic plans and

The object of the Trust stipulates that the overall mandate
of the Trust is to coordinate and support the implementation
of the NSP.

PFMA and Treasury Regulations
Clause 7.5 of the Trust Deed provides that: The Trust should
endeavor to operate and be audited, as far as is possible,
in accordance with the requirements of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA) and the Treasury Regulations
(TR).

TR 30.2.1 to Executive Authority.
PFMA 54 Information to be submitted by accounting

authorities to Treasury for: establishment of a company;
participation
in
a
significant
partnership, trust,
unincorporated joint venture or similar arrangement;
acquisition or disposal of a significant shareholding in a
company; acquisition or disposal of a significant asset;
commencement or cessation of a significant business
activity; and a significant change in the nature or extent of
its interest in a significant partnership, trust, unincorporated
joint venture or similar arrangement.

The SANAC Trust will comply with the PFMA and Treasury
Regulations as if it is a Schedule 3(A) public entity as defined
in the PFMA, with the exemption of those sections of the
PFMA and TR that will not be applicable to the SANAC Trust
as mentioned below:

PFMA 55.1 Annual report and financial statements to be

Corporate management

TR 16.3.1 Procedures to follow when a Public-private

TR 33.2.1

Investigation of alleged financial misconduct
reported to Executive Authority

TR 33.3.1
Authority.

Criminal proceedings reported to Executive

submitted to Treasury and Executive Authority.

PFMA 65 Tabling in legislatures.
partnership is identified.

TR 16.5.1 Public-private partnerships to have prior written
approval of Treasury.

Planning and budgeting

TR 16.6.1 The Trust will publish its annual report on its
website and will deliver copies to donors and (government and non-governmental) stakeholders. Reporting to
Treasury is not possible as the Trust is not recognised as a
public entity, and all reporting will be done to the Board of
Trustees.

PFMA

Cash management, banking and investment

The Trust does not have an executive authority as defined
in the PFMA. Instead, the Trust will report any such issues to
the Board of Trustees.

52
Annual budget, corporate plan and
shareholder’s
compact by Schedule 2 public entities and
government business enterprises submitted to Treasury.

TR 29.2 Shareholder’s compact concluded with Executive

TR 31.2.1 Submission to Treasury details of banking accounts. The Board of Trustees approves all bank accounts

Authority.

Irregular expenditure

PFMA 53 Annual budgets by non-business Schedule 3
public entities submitted to Executive Authority.

The definition by Treasury of irregular expenditure is ‘transgression of a provision contained in any applicable legislation which shall include: (a) the PFMA, (b) the Treasury
Regulation’. This will include transgression of procurement
procedures. During the current year, there was no such
transgression recorded.

TR

30.1

Authority.

Strategic

Plan

submitted

to

Executive

Instead, the Trust will submit budgets, strategic plans and
annual performance plans to the Board of Trustees for
approval.

Management of working capital
PFMA38.1 (j) General responsibilities of accounting
officers - financial management and internal controls
assurance - submitted to transferring department.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
The definition from the PFMA for fruitless and wasteful expenditure is ‘expenditure which was made in vain and would
have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised’.
During the reporting period, there were two transactions
that fit the profile of fruitless and wasteful expenditure:

TR 29.1.6 Borrowing programme contents submitted to

Is where the Trust received communication from an Executive Managers email address requesting a change to her
banking details for the payment of her salary. This amounted to R89, 152.

TR 32.1

An amount of R150, 000 was paid to a supplier as deposit
for procurement of goods but delivery was not honoured.

The Trust is not expected to borrow, so this is unlikely to be
a problem.

Both the incidents are under investigation and Management is working with authorities, the suppliers involved and
the banks to recover the funds.

TR 29.1.3 Borrowing programme.
Treasury.

Borrow money for bridging purposes with the
approval of the Minister of Finance.
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FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
The compilation of this Annual Report has been undertaken
under the supervision of Ms Coceka Nogoduka who is now
the Acting CEO since 01 June following the resignation
of Dr Sandile Buthelezi as CEO of the SANAC Trust. Dr
Buthelezi has accepted a position as Director General of the
National Department of Health, a strategic move that will
benefit both SANAC and Dr Buthelezi since the two entities
continuously work hand in hand in the HIV response. We bid
him farewell and wish him well in his new position and hope
that he will continue to render his full support to the SANAC
Trust. We welcome Ms Nogoduka as Acting CEO and have
full confidence that she will maintain stability and safely
steer the ship until the recruitment process for the new CEO
has been concluded.
My thanks and that of the Board also to the SANAC
Secretariat and staff for having shouldered on through this
really challenging period in history not just of our country, but
also of the entire world. You continue showing the dedication
and commitment that SANAC has come to be known for. My
thanks to the members of the Board of Trustees who have
volunteered their precious time to serve our country. Their
collective efforts maintain stability and enable the Trust to
thrive.

This Annual Report comes on the heels of the recently
concluded Mid-Term Review (MTR) of the current National
Strategic Plan (NSP) for HIV, TB and STIs 2017-2022.
The NSP is our compass towards the achievement of the
UNAIDS 90-90-90 targets to end AIDS and eliminate HIV
as a public health threat by the year 2020. The targets are
tailored as follows:
- 90% of people infected with HIV should know their
status - this means testing services should be scaled up.
- 90% of people who have tested positive should be on
treatment – this means we need to do much more to
initiate and retain people on treatment.
- 90% of those on treatment should be virally-supressed
and therefore non-infectious – this means our treatment
adherence interventions should also be scaled up.
Outcomes of the MTR report are bittersweet – they indicate
that South Africa had surpassed the first 90. However, the
country is not doing well on the other 90s, especially the
second one which currently sits at 68.4% whilst the last 90 is
currently at 88.4%. Our work is certainly cut out for us!
As the administrative arm within the greater SANAC
family, the Trust plays a pivotal role in coordinating the
implementation of the NSP and thus remains committed
to ensuring that the few remaining years of the NSP paint
a promising narrative in the HIV response. We still have an
opportunity to steer the country towards the attainment of
the NSP goals. It requires our collective will and efforts.
Good corporate governance continues to be the prime focus
within the Trust – we have achieved yet another unqualified
audit for this financial year and this has been the norm for
several years. This is an encouraging accomplishment, and
I would express the Board’s gratitude to all who helped us
achieve this.
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As the SANAC Board of Trustees, we would also like to thank
the SANAC Chairperson, Deputy President David Mabuza
and the Co-Chair, Ms Steve Letsike for the continued
support and stewardship they render to the greater SANAC
structure inclusive of government, civil society and the
private sector.
……………………………………………
Dr Yacoob Abba Omar
Chairperson of the Board of Trustees
South African National AIDS Council (SANAC) Trust

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW
• Hosted a breakfast dialogue on the South Africa’s
National Human Rights Plan with law firms in an effort to
orientate private and public lawyers in South Africa who
are litigating cases in domestic courts that strengthen the
rights of people living with and affected by HIV and/or TB.
• Supported, with the grant from the World Health
Organisation, the SANAC People Living with HIV (PLHIV)
sector to design the Community-led monitoring project
that will implement routine monitoring of the quality and
accessibility of HIV treatment and prevention services in
selected districts.
As we wrap this financial year, we are seeing the end of the
She Conquers campaign, a 3-year campaign for Adolescent
Girls and Young Women launched on 24 June 2016 by the
former Deputy President and the then Chair of SANAC,
President Cyril Ramaphosa. This Campaign was aligned
to policy and programme initiatives to curb HIV infections
among the youth. Furthermore, it was a targeted approach
to scaling up and fast tracking HIV prevention efforts for
young women and girls. The SANAC Trust has embarked
on a process to review the She Conquers campaign and
develop a new youth HIV prevention campaign.
It is with pleasure to present the FY 2019/20 Annual Report of
the SANAC Trust. The year under review evidenced multiple
achievements, whilst simultaneously facing challenges of
managing the implementation of the National Strategic
Plan (NSP) for HIV, TB and STIs 2017 – 2022.
At the start of the ﬁnancial year in April 2019, the South
Africa Global Fund Country Coordinating Mechanism (SA GF
CCM signed grant agreements with the Global Fund Principal
Recipients (PRs) to implement the Global Fund to Fight
AIDS, Tuberculosis and Malaria funding of $ $353,321,121,
that will cover the period April 2019 to March 2022. This was
an exciting time for the SANAC Trust as this investment is
expected to contribute towards the achievement of targets
in South Africa’s NSP, adding to the PEPFAR Country
Operational Plan 2020 investment of $528,910,056. These
investments are an indication of the successful partnerships
that exist between SANAC and key development partners
for an expanded national response to HIV, TB and STIs.
During the year under review, the SANAC Trust continued
to enhance the implementation of the NSP through the
following ways;
• Launched South Africa’s National Human Rights Plan:
a comprehensive response to human rights-related
barriers to HIV & TB services & gender inequality in South
Africa
• Hosted a Reflections on SA AIDS 2019: What will we do
differently in our HIV response?
• Undertook the Mid-Term Review of the National
Strategic Plan (NSP) for HIV, TB and STI 2017 – 2022
• Undertook the Mid-term Review of the South African
National Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender and Intersex
(LGBTI) HIV Plan 2017 – 2022
• Lobbied the National Assembly and National Council
of Provinces to establish the South African chapter of the
Global TB Caucus
• Hosted the Joint United Nations Programme on HIV/
AIDS (UNAIDS) 2019 UNAIDS Global Report “Communities
at the Centre”.
• Undertook the review of the South African National Sex
Work HIV Plan.
• Accepted the eThekwini Declaration of epidemic control
handed over to SANAC Chair, Deputy President Mabuza,
at the closing ceremony of the 9th SA AIDS Conference

Apart from the contribution of Government to the
implementation of the NSP, we have not fought the battle
in isolation. We have fought together with partners who
have stood with us all along. This became evident when all
our stakeholders headed the SANAC’s Chairperson, Deputy
President David Mabuza’s call to all South Africans to work
across all sectors to scale up the roll out of the Cheka
Impilo National Wellness Campaign. This campaign aims to
accelerate screening and testing for HIV, tuberculosis (TB),
sexually transmitted infections (STIs) and non-communicable
diseases such as hypertension and diabetes..
It is therefore my pleasure to appreciate the various partners,
institutions and civil society organizations that have worked
and are still working with the SANAC Trust and the people of
South Africa to implement this NSP towards its final years.
I also call upon you for continued support as we prepare a
successor Strategic Plan for 2022/23 – 2027/28.
As I write this Overview, a couple of days before, on 15
March, the President of South Africa, Cyril Ramaphosa,
declared a national state of disaster, with a national
lockdown announced, to start on the 27 March 2020 as an
approach to strengthen the nation’s plan to contain the
spread and mitigate the negative impact of the coronavirus.
As the coronavirus (COVID-19) crisis continues to unfold,
the SANAC Trust will be striving to sustain the existing HIV,
TB and STIs response achievements. If those gains are not
sustained or, if the supply of affordable HIV drugs dries up
or, if there is any slowing down on prevention of mother-tochild transmission of HIV or, if there is the slightest hint of
complacency over HIV prevention in general, we will fail in
our mission to end HIV as a public health threat. We have
already seen, in some countries, what transpires when HIV
prevention pressure eases off. We cannot afford to let that
happen to us.
As we strive for HIV epidemic control and an AIDS-free
generation by the year 2030, it is truly in our hands to realise
these targets.

……………………………………………
Ms. Coceka Nogoduka
Acting Chief Executive Officer
South African National AIDS Council (SANAC) Trust
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Statement of Responsibility and Accuracy for the Annual Report
To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report are consistent with the Annual Financial Statements audited by
the external auditors, Turning Point Consultants Southern Africa Inc. The annual report is complete, accurate and free from
any omissions.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Standards applicable to
the entity.
The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the Annual Financial Statements and for the judgements
made in this information.
The accounting authority is responsible for establishing and implementing a system of internal control that has been
designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human
resources information and the Annual Financial Statements.
The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual Financial Statements.
In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information and the financial affairs of the entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

……………………………………….. 			 				…………………………………………………
		
Dr. Yacoob Abba Omar
Ms. Coceka Nogoduka
Acting Chief Executive Officer
		
Chairperson of the Board of Trustees
South African National AIDS Council (SANAC) Trust
		
South African National AIDS Council
		
(SANAC) Trust
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AUDIT AND RISK INCORPORATED REPORT:
Predetermined Objectives
Independent Assurance Report on Selected Performance
Indicators
We have undertaken a limited assurance engagement on
selected performance indicators, as described below, and
present it in the 2019/2020 annual report of the South
African National AIDS Council (SANAC) Trust for the year
ended 31 March 2020.

Subject matter
We are required to provide limited assurance on the
following performance indicators, prepared in accordance
with the 2019/2020 Annual Performance Plan (APP),
technical indicator r descriptions published in the APP as
well as any internally generated policies and procedures
where necessary.

Trustees’ responsibilities
The trustees are responsible for the following activities: the
selection, preparation and presentation of the performance
indicators in accordance with the 2018/2019 APP; technical
indicator descriptions published in the APP as well as
any internally generated policies and procedures where
necessary. This responsibility includes the identification
of stakeholders and stakeholder requirements, material
issues, commitments to sustainability performance and the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation of a report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Our independence and quality control
We have complied with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants and the Code of Professional
Conduct for Registered Auditors issued by the Independent
Regulatory Board for Auditors, which includes independence
and other requirements founded on fundamental principles
of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due
care, confidentiality and professional behaviour.
ARC Chartered Accountants and Auditors Incorporated
applies the International Standard on Quality Control
1 and accordingly maintains a comprehensive system
of quality control, including documented policies and
procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements,
professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

Our responsibility
Our responsibility is to express a limited assurance
conclusion on the selected performance indicators based
on the procedures we have performed and the evidence
we have obtained. We conducted our limited assurance
engagement in accordance with the International Standard
on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 (revised),
Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information, issued by the International
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That standard
requires that we plan and perform our engagement to obtain
limited assurance about whether the selected performance
indicators are free from material misstatement.
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A limited assurance engagement undertaken in accordance
with ISAE 3000 (revised) involves assessing the suitability
in the circumstances of the Trust’s use of the 2019/2020
APP. The assessment serves as the basis of preparation
for the selected performance indicators, assessing the
risks of material misstatement of the selected performance
indicators whether due to fraud or error, responding to
the assessed risks as necessary in the circumstances,
and evaluating the overall presentation of the selected
performance indicators. A limited assurance engagement is
substantially smaller in scope than a reasonable assurance
engagement in relation to both risk assessment procedures,
including an understanding of internal control, and the
procedures performed in response to the assessed risks.
The procedures we performed relied on our professional
judgment and included inquiries, observation of processes
performed, inspection of documents, analytical procedures,
evaluating the appropriateness of quantification methods
and reporting policies, and agreeing or reconciling with
underlying records.
Given the circumstances of the engagement, in performing
the procedures listed above, we:
•

Obtained an understanding of:
- the entity and its environment;
- entity-level controls;

		

- The significant reporting processes, including
initiation, recording, processing and reporting
of information and the correction of incorrect
information, as well as the policies and 		
procedures within the reporting process.

Interviewed management, employees and those responsible
for the preparation of the report and the selected actual
performance, as we considered necessary.
Inspected relevant supporting documentation and
obtained such external confirmations and management
representations, as we considered necessary for our
engagement.
Performed analytical procedures and limited tests of detail
responsive to our risk assessment and the level of assurance
required, including comparison of judgmentally selected
information to the underlying source documentation from
the information sources.
The procedures performed in a limited assurance
engagement vary in nature from, and are less extensive
than for, a reasonable assurance engagement. As a result,
the level of assurance obtained in a limited assurance
engagement is substantially lower than the assurance
a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we
do not express a reasonable assurance opinion about
whether the Trust’s selected performance indicators have
been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
the 2019/2020 APP, technical indicator descriptions as
published in the APP as well as any internally generated
policies and procedures where necessary.

Limited assurance conclusion
Based on the procedures we have performed and the evidence
we have obtained, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that:
•

The selected performance indicators as set out in the
subject matter paragraph for the year ended 31 March
2020 are not prepared and presented, in all material
respects, in accordance with the 2018-19APP and related
technical indicator descriptions included in the APP.

•

The actual performance reported for the selected
performance indicators as set out in the subject matter
paragraph does not reflect the performance of the Trust.

Restriction of liability
Our work enabled us to express a limited assurance
conclusion on the selected performance indicators to the
trustees of the SANAC Trust in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not accept
or assume liability to any party other than SANAC Trust for
our work, for this report or for the conclusion; we havereached
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Other matters
Our report does not extend to any disclosures or assertions
relating to future performance plans and/or strategies
disclosed in the report.
The maintenance and integrity of the SANAC Trust website is
the responsibility of the Trust’s management. Our procedures
didnotinvolveconsiderationofthesematters and,accordingly,
we accept no responsibility for any changes to either the
information in the report or our independent assurance report
that may have occurred since the initial date of presentation
on the SANAC Trust website.

ARC Chartered Accountants and Auditors Incorporated
Registered Chartered Accountants and Auditors (SA) Per:
F van Heerden
Associate Registered Auditor Date
1st Floor, Unit 5
299 Pendoring Avenue
Blackheath Ext 6
2195
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PART B

Performance Report
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TABLE 1: SUMMARY OF ANNUAL PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE INDICATORS PER UNIT
Programme

Performance indicator

Programme 1: Governance
and Administration

Number of quarterly Executive Management Committee (EXCO)
meetings

Page
27

Number of quarterly Management Committee (MANCO) meetings
Number of quarterly Board meetings
Number of quarterly PRC, IMC and Plenary meetings
Board-Approved APP by Q1, published on time
Board-Approved Annual Report by Q2, published on time
An unqualified audit opinion by Q2
An approved HR Plan with 4 relevant HR policies approved by Quarter 4

Programme 2:
Communications

Approved National SBCC strategy by Quarter 2

31

Approved National SBCC campaign guidelines by Quarter 3
Number of SANAC Media engagements
Number of SANAC newsletters
Number of events with SANAC visibility
Number progress reports supporting the implementation of the NSP, published
on the SANAC Website
Approved internal communication system policy, implemented within stipulated
timeframes
Approved World AIDS Day Toolkits
Approved TB toolkits
Approved Social Behavior Change Communications Technical Task Team minutes with recommendations

Programme 3:
NSP Implementation

Number of reports from the Social and Structural Drivers and Prevention Technical Task Team meetings developed annually

41-42

Number of Government sector plans developed to support NSP Implementation
annually
Number of Costed PIPs published on the SANAC Website
Technical assistance with a checklist
She Conquers Assessment report developed within set timeframes
Accelerated Prevention Revolution Report developed annually
Number of Key Populations Progress Reports developed annually and submitted within set timeframes
A Mid-term review of national strategies for key populations conducted for approval, within set timeframes
Provincial AIDS Council’s functionality criteria developed and published on the
SANAC website.
Number of PCA Functionality Assessments conducted annually and tabled at
the quarterly Heads of Secretariat meeting
Approved AIDS Councils Secretariat Guidelines developed.
Number of Heads of Secretariat (HoS) PCA meeting reports developed annually.
Annual business plan developed for the implementation of the DSD national
SBCC programme.
Number of contracts signed annually with NPOs across 9 provinces to implement the DSD National SBCC programme.
Number of new national strategies for key populations developed and published
Number of Key Population treatment cascades developed annually.
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Number of Municipal Fast Track Coordination meetings held annually.
Number of reports on engagement on SALGA Pledge annually

Programme 4:
Strategic Information

Reviewed NSP M&E Plan

49-50

Approved National Wellness Campaign Report from the Nerve Centre submitted
on a quarterly basis
Published FFI Reports on the SANAC Website
Developed NSP Research Agenda
Signed data sharing agreements in place and being implemented
Published Quarterly Factsheets on NSP Targets
Approved M&E Routine Assessment Reports
Approved and published Mid-Term Review Report
Global AIDS Monitoring (GAM) Report
Approved minutes of the SI TTT tabled at the PRC within the stipulated period

Programme 5: Resource
Mobilisagtion and Donor
Coordination

Approved Resource Mobilisation Strategy available on the SANAC Website

54

Number of costing TTT documents developed
Number of innovative NSP financing option pilots implemented in SA annually
Review of expenditure on HIV, TB and STIs in SA published on the SANAC website
Report of annual expenditure in SA for key programmes described in the NSP
2017-2022 published on the SANAC website
Report on co-funding raised annually from the private sector
Report on the annual expenditure in the implementation of the 9 Provincial Implementation Plans
Number of Global Fund Country Coordinating Mechanism Meetings held annually
Number of Oversight Committee Reports developed annually
Amount disbursed to Principal Recipients

Programme 6: Stakeholder
Management and
Campaigns

Established private sector forum by Quarter 4

59

Number of Human Rights Technical Task Team meetings held annually
Minutes of SANAC PRC Meeting recommendations to plenary
Number of engagement sessions held with leaders on SANAC priority campaigns
Number of nerve centre reports approved
Number of campaign waves supported
Number of Civil Society Forum Meetings
Approved Strategy on Human Rights
Documented Human Rights violations report developed

Programme 7:
Technical Support

Number of programme description documents aligned to national guidelines
Number of monitoring meetings held
Number of reporting tools/systems developed
Number of stakeholder meetings held
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62

PERFORMANCE
OBJECTIVES

AGAINST

PREDETARMINED

Programme 1: Governance and Administration
Purpose: The governance and administration functional
area provides overall administration and management for
the SANAC Trust and centralised support services. The
Finance and Administration Unit provides support to SANAC
Trust in the areas of Finance, Procurement, Information
Technology, Contracts and Grant Management.

Clearance of sixty seven percent of the prior year’s audit
findings relating to the Finance and Administration Unit
occurred before the completion of the internal audit with
the remaining audit findings under review before the
commencement of the 2019/20 external audit.

External Audit
An unqualified audit opinion was approved by Turning Point
Consulting Southern Africa Inc. the external auditors of the
Trust.

GOVERNANCE
Board of Trustee

INCOME and REVENUE

The Board met quarterly to enforce prudent governance
within the SANAC Trust. In enforcing good governance in the
Trust, the Board of Trustees met in the financial year and
approved the following;

The SANAC Secretariat submitted quarterly Donor reports
to respective funders, namely Department of Social
Development (DSD) Core, and DSD Social Behaviour
Communication (SBC) Project and National Department of
Health (NDoH) Core. An amount of R xx was received from
NDoH core funding during the financial year 2019/2020.
Additional funding proposal to World Health Organisation
(WHO) amounting to Rxx for supporting Community HIV
Treatment Monitoring.

ü
ü
ü
ü
ü
ü

SANAC Annual Report 2018/19.
Annual Performance Plan 2019/20
Adjusted budget for 2019/20 and 3 year
Mid Term Expenditure (MTEF) 2021/22 – 2023/24).
Risk Register for 2019/20 and the Internal Audit Plan
Policies that enhance good governance

ADMINISTRATION
The Audit and Risk Committee as well as the Governance
met once during this reporting period. The Remuneration
committee did not meet, as there were no human resource
related that needed attention.

Executive Management Committee
Management Committee (MANCO)

(EXCO)

and

In striving for better governance and management of the
Trust, EXCO and MANACO meet on quarterly basis to
discuss performance management issues and challenges
that may arise and formulate plans to mitigate them.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
An unqualified audit opinion
According to the PFMA guidelines the Board of Trustees
also approved unaudited 2018/19 Audited Financial
Statements by 31 May 2019 per PFMA deadline. The Board
considered including the new revenue standards (IFRS 15)
which is effective for the first time.

Internal Auditing
Internal Audit concluded their reviews during for the financial
year. The audit focus areas were:

ü Audit of Predetermined Objectives for Q2 of
2018/19

ü
ü
ü
ü

An award of $xx was confirmed from CDC to support SANAC
Trust for coordination, management and monitoring of the
Multi Sectoral Implementation of the NSP for a 12 month
period ending 29 September 2020.

Expenditure
Human Resource Plan
During the period under review, HR Programme area

focused on strengthening the Trust’s HR capabilities
through the approval of policies and an HR Plan. The HR
Plan streamlined three out of four relevant policies, which
provide structure, control, consistency and fairness within
the Trust. The policies will also ensure compliance with
relevant employment legislation and inform employees of
the Trust’s expectations and their own responsibilities.
The SANAC Board of Trust approved the following HR
policies:

•
•
•
•

Health and Wellness
Remuneration
Performance Management
hundred percent thirteenth cheque for all
employees

The Trust’s HR Plan is a working document informed by the
availability of funding per project. The availability of funding
informs the recruitment and strengthening of capacity of
relevant personnel in line with the projects’ lifespan. During
the next reporting period, the HR Programme area will focus
on the implementation of the HR plan in accordance with
the availability of funding.

Management of Operations (follow up)
Supply Chain Management
Finance Management (follow up)
Governance & compliance
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TABLE 2: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Strategic Objective

Performance indicator

Estimated
Performance
2019/2020

Number of quarterly Executive
Management Committee (EXCO)
meetings
Strengthen the
governance, leadership
and management of the
response to HIV, TB and
STI

16

Actual
Performance

Comments

2019/2020

7

Target set were
unachievable. These
were revised in the
2020/21 APP
Target set were
unachievable. These
were revised in the
2020/21 APP

Number of quarterly Management
Committee (MANCO) meetings

16

6

Number of quarterly Board meetings

4

4

Number of quarterly PRC, IMC
and Plenary meetings

6

3

Board-Approved APP by Q1,
published on time

1

1

Board-Approved Annual Report
by Q2, published on time

1

1

An unqualified audit opinion by
Q2

1

1

An approved HR Plan with 4
relevant HR policies approved by
Quarter 4

1

3

Target set were
unachievable. These
were revised in the
2020/21 APP

the year the number of
“ Over
new cases of mother to child

transmission of HIV (PMTCT)
has declined by 66% since 2010.
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Programme 2: Communication

10 taxis with HIV & TB messages in key focus areas to create
awareness and motivate the public in getting tested and
ensuring treatment adherence.

Purpose: To coordinate all communication related
activities and requirements for SANAC Trust programmes
and projects.

SANAC newsletters

National Social Behavior Change and Communication
(SBCC) Strategy

During the period under review, the Communications Unit
published two newsletters. The newsletters are means of
communication tool to keep stakeholders and SANAC staff
about news that relate to the work of the council.

The process to develop the National Social Behaviour
Change Communication Strategy commenced in July 2019
and ended in March 2020. The Strategy will support the
implementation of the National Strategic Plan (NSP) for
HIV, TB and STIs 2017-2022. The next stage of the process
will include getting the Strategy approved by the relevant
SANAC structures for implementation.

SANAC Visibility
The Communications Unit achieved its target of conducting
six events with SANAC visibility, as described below.

Global Fund Signing Ceremony
National SBCC campaign guidelines
The Communications Unit developed a Communications
Guideline document in an effort to maximise exposure for
the SBCC programmes as well as to improve coordination
among the stakeholders (Department of Social Development
{DSD}, SANAC and the Not-for-Profit Organisations {NPOs}).
The guideline will assist NPOs in carrying out some of the
communications activities to attract more beneficiaries into
the programme and to create awarenessin communities
they serve.

SANAC Media engagements
The SANAC Secretariat held several media engagements
in the reporting period of 2019/2020. The Communications
Unit facilitated extensive media interviews around key
events such as the 8th SA AIDS Conference, World AIDS
Day and the launch of the UNAIDS Global Report as well
as the Global Fund Grant Signing Ceremony. As leading
members of the Task Team for the UNAIDS Report
launch, SANAC coordinated media interviews and issued
media advisories and press releases to that effect.
The Communications Unit accelerated efforts on media
engagements to maximise HIV, TB and STIs messaging as
part of build-up activities to World AIDS Day. The SANAC
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and his Executive Managers
participated in a number of interviews on various news and
current affairs programmes for a number of mediums listed
below:

ü Print media; e.g. Global Fund signing ceremony and
branded taxis

The Communications Unit led a team of health communicators
inclusive of the National Department of Health and the
Presidency to ensure sufficient coverage around the grant
signing of the 2019-2022 funding agreements with the four
selected Global Fund (GF) Principal Recipients (PRs). The
GF PRs for the period 2019-2022 are Networking HIV/AIDS
Community of Southern Africa (NACOSA), AIDS Foundation
South Africa (AFSA), Beyond Zero and National Department
of Health. High-powered delegates including the deputy
president of South Africa, Mr. David Mabuza attended the
ceremony.

Media Visibility
The Communications Unit led the development of a
Communications Plan for the official commemoration
of World TB Day, a key annual event. The development
process included Presidency, Department of Health, Civil
Society, the chosen host province (Mpumalanga) and other
stakeholders.

Before the national lockdown announced by the President
upon the implementation of the National Disaster
Management Act, the Communications Unit had already
undertaken media buying to communicate World TB
Day messages. This exercise continued even after the
cancellation of the event to ensure that South Africans still
commemorate World TB Day in the midst of the emergent
Coronavirus outbreak. The media buying included print and
electronic media at national level and the event-hosting
province of Mpumalanga.

ü Television (TV) broadcast; e.g. launch of the new HIV

Drug Tenofovir, Lamivudine and Dolutegravi (TLD) and
build up to 2019 World AIDS Day.

ü Radio; e.g. Interviews on HIV response.
In an effort to “leave no-one behind” in the HIV response,
the Trust continued to lobby for legal reforms against the
criminalisation of sex work. The Communications Unit
facilitated sex worker dialogues in various parts of the
country, through organized community and national media,
including the provision of branding in the following areas:
Burgersfort, Musina and Rustenburg. The Unit also branded

For the Human Rights Month (March) SANAC held an
engagement with the legal fraternity to rally them behind
the new National Human Rights Plan developed by SANAC.
Renowned social justice activist and former Constitutional
Court Judge, Edwin Cameron was among the panelist
alongside the Co-Chair of the Human Rights Technical Task
Team, Deputy Minister of Justice John Jeffrey, SABC Radio &
TV News as well as Health-e covered the event.
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UNAIDS Global AIDS Report Launch
SANAC Chairperson, Deputy President, Mr. David Mabuza
delivered the keynote address at the launch of the UNAIDS
Global AIDS Report in Eshowe, KwaZulu Natal.

Progress reports supporting the implementation of
the NSP

Cheka Impilo campaign
As part of the Cheka Impilo campaign, the Trust supported
and participated in a number of activities as follows;

ü

ü

coordination of WAD planning, and actively participated in
the Communications Task Team to ensure extensive media
coverage.

National Education, Health and Allied Workers’ Union
(NEHAWU) national wellness conference held in
Durban’s Curry’s Fountain for 4 days.
Rotary Family Health Days held in a rural community of
Burgersfort in October 2019.

Social and Behaviour Change Communication Project
The
Communications
Unit
continued
to
render
communications support to the rolling District and Provincial
Men’s Parliaments and Boys Assemblies in partnership with
the National Department of Social Development. Several
Behaviour Change Communication activities focused more
on the Men Championing Change programme through
several Men’s Parliament and Boys assemblies’ throughout
the country.

As part of media, coverage for the Men Championing
Change, Social and Behaviour Change (SBC) programme
supported by the Department of Social Development (DSD)
and led by the SANAC Civil Society Forum (CSF) Men’s
Sector conducted programmes, as follows:

ü

Men’s Parliament in Springbok, Northern Cape Province

ü

Men’s Parliament in Newcastle KwaZulu Natal Province

ü

Boys’ Assemblies in Pongola in KwaZulu Natal Province

ü

Boys’ Assemblies in Vereeniging in Gauteng Province

ü

Men’s Parliament & Boys Assembly Dr Ruth Mompati
District in the North West Province

ü The Polokwane Municipality Boys Assembly in Seshego
in Limpopo Province

ü The Waterberg District Men’s Parliament in Modimolle
in Limpopo Province

ü The Ehlanzeni District Boys Assembly held in
Bushbuckridge in Mpumalanga Province

ü Buffalo City Municipality Men’s Parliament & OR Tambo
District Boys Assembly

ü Garden Route District Men’s Parliament and Boys

The Communications Unit published NSP Progress
Reports on the SANAC website. The reports support
implementation of the NSP the following were
published;

•

Summary of the NSP Mid Term Report 2019

•

Summary of the NSP Mid Term Report
disaggregated by women 2019

•

Review of the National Sex Worker Plan –
2016-2019

•

National Sex Worker Plan - 2019-2022

World AIDS day tool kit
The Communications Unit developed the World AIDS Day
Toolkit in collaboration with SANAC Stakeholders. The
Communications Unit published the toolkit on the SANAC
Website. The purpose of the toolkit was to guide the
country’s efforts in commemorating World AIDS Day 2019.

World TB day Tool kit
The Secretariat led the development of the World TB Day
toolkit and circulated to all stakeholders. The Secretariat
also shared the toolkit with Government Communication
Information System for dissemination to all government
departments within provinces and local levels. The toolkit
included the year’s look and feel for the World TB Day
commemoration, an identity guide for promotional materials
and key messages. Additionally, the Trust, through the NSP
Unit, coordinated the TB Caucus Advocacy workshop with
civil society and development partners.

Behaviour change communications Technical Task
Team minutes with recommendations
The Communication and NSP Implementation Units
convened one SBCC Technical Task Team (TTT) meeting.
The primary objective of the TTT meeting was to engage
and provide inputs into the approach and content of the
National SBCC Strategy for the NSP. The TTT committed
to guide implementation of the strategy and support the
mobilisation of resources for its implementation.

Assembly held in George and Knysna in the Western
Cape Province

Other Achievements
The ninth South African AIDS Conference

World AIDS Day
On 1 December 2019, South
commemorating the annual
South Africa commemorated
the North West Province. The
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Africa joined the world in
World AIDS Day (WAD).
WAD event in Orkney, in
Secretariat led the overall

At the 9th South Africa (SA) AIDS conference held at the
Durban’s International Conference Center (ICC) in June
2019, SANAC partnered with United Nations Agencies
and government in sharing a stand which communicated

South Africa’s progress in the HIV response. The stand
featured hard copies of various Information, Education and
Communication (IEC) materials including the newly launched
Human Rights Strategy, the NSP and a SANAC newsletter
specially produced for the conference.

Reflections on the SA AIDS Conference
The Secretariat hosted a post conference forum with all
stakeholders including the Chairperson of the Conference
Professor Refilwe Phaswana-Mafuya. The event theme
was “Reflections on the SA AIDS Conference”. This was an
initiative by the NSP Implementation Unit and supported by
Communication Unit.

Web and Social Media
SANAC enjoyed a steady digital growth and engagement
on social media. Significant peak was evident around key
events such as the Global Fund Signing Ceremony, the
Launch of the Human Rights Strategy and the ninth SA AIDS
Conference.

ü Twitter impressions reached 29.1 thousand in April and

74.7 in June (SA AIDS2019 and Human Rights Strategy
launch).

ü Facebook also enjoyed constant “shares and likes”

during this reporting period. The average reach per
post constantly lingered around 300.

ü Google Analytics results demonstrate a healthy
engagement via the SANAC website and shows that
more “new users” were attracted every month.

TABLE 3: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Strategic Objective

Create and strengthen
partnerships for an
expanded national
response in South
Africa to HIV, TB and
STI

Foster dialogue and
build consensus so
that government,
civil society, the
private sector and
development partners
cooperate to achieve
the goals of the NSP

Performance indicator

Estimated
Actual
performance Performance

Comments

2019/2020

2019/2020

Approved National SBCC
strategy by Quarter 2

1

1

Achieved

Approved National SBCC
campaign guidelines by
Quarter 3

1

0

The SBCC Strategy final
draft was finalized later
than anticipated thereby
delaying the formulation
of the guideline.

Number of SANAC Media
engagements

4

14

There was more
media coverage due
to the number of key
engagements SANAC
participated in.

Number of SANAC newsletter

4

3

One issue was a bumper
issue.

Number of events with SANAC
visibility

6

7

SANAC participated in
more engagements than
anticipated.

Number of progress reports
supporting the implementation
of the NSP, published on the
SANAC Website

2

4

There were more
reports produced than
anticipated resulting in a
surplus.

Publish information hub on the
SANAC website

1

0

This has been set aside
due to budget constraints.

Approved internal communication system policy, implemented within stipulated timeframes

1

0

Still in progress.

An approved World AIDS Day/
Toolkit developed within set
timeframes

1

1

An approved World TB Day
Toolkit developed within set
timeframes

1

1

Approved Social Behavior
Change Communications Technical Task Team minutes with
recommendations

2

1

See 2.1 in the narrative
report above.
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Programme 3: NSP Implementation
Purpose of Unit

with the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer and
Intersex (LGBTQI), Sex Workers and People who are injecting
drugs (PWID). Additionally, the Secretariat supported the
SAPS on the Dignity, Diversity, and Policing programme.

•

Support
national
coordination
implementation of the NSP

•

Support the coordination and oversee the
implementation of a coordinated prevention roadmap

Costed Provincial Implementation Plans (PIPs)
published on the SANAC Website

•

Develop, review, update and complete national
strategies and plans to guide the HIV response to key
and vulnerable populations

•

Build the capacity of provincial, district and local aids
councils.

The Secretariat did not publish costed PIPs on the SANAC
Website but there was considerable progress towards this
deliverable, as explained below. The Secretariat facilitated
the costing of the Mpumalanga PIP as a pilot project to
inform a standard process of costing the PIPs for the other
eight provinces.

for

effective

Social and structural drivers Technical Task Team
The NSP Unit established and launched the Social and
Structural Drivers (SSD) TTT in September 2019. The
NSP convened only one meeting out of the targeted four
meetings for the period under review. The inaugural meeting
approved the Terms of Reference (ToRs) for the TTT. During
the meeting, the following were discussed; SSD in the
National Strategic Plan; considered an anthropological
approach to the epidemic; DSDs role as the Champion of
SSD in the NSP.

The TTT put forward a proposal to develop a social
research agenda for the country. The TTT established a
sub-committee chaired by Dr. David Harrison. The purpose
of the sub-committee was to identify and feed into urgent
and topical discussions and decisions in relation to SSD.

Subsequent to the TTT meeting, sub-committee of the SSD,
the TTT convened a meeting to develop and submit written
input to the National Strategic Plan (NSP) for Gender-Based
Violence with a view towards alignment and intersections
with the NSP for HIV, TB and STIs (2017-2022).

Government sector plans supporting NSP implementation
The Secretariat supported the National Department of
Health (NDoH) to review and develop NDoH HIV Prevention
Strategy. The HIV prevention strategy is complete.

During the period under review, the Secretariat continued to
work with the Transport Sector Coordinating committee of
the Department of Transport to facilitate the committee’s
quarterly review meetings. The Secretariat supported the
committee to put together documentation for the NSP
Mid-Term Review (MTR). The Secretariat also supported
the Transport sector coordinating committee under the
National Department of Transport to review their annual
implementation plan for the period under review.

The secretariat also continued to support the South African
Police Services (SAPS) on their Cheka’Impilo activation
planning, participating in the planning meeting and providing
technical guidance on Cheka Impilo. The activation for SAPS
Cheka Impilo targeted on the strengthening of relationships
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The secretariat secured funding to support provinces with
the costing of their Provincial Implementation Plans (PIPs).
The Global Fund provided the funding and allocated the
funding to its two PRs to ensure the costing of all nine PIPs.
The process of costing the PIPs will commence in the next
financial year, upon completion of the MTR of the PIPs.
This activity is an opportunity to realign the budgeting with
new programmatic priorities and associated costs. The
secretariat finalised the Terms of Reference for the costing
work.

Technical assistance with a checklist
In line with the functionality assessment of 2019 conducted
in five provinces, the Secretariat contacted a service
provider to develop an action plan detailing clear technical
needs and assistance for each individual province. The
checklist was designed in a way that it automatically
provides a snapshot of the province hence making it easy
to determine the technical needs of the province.

She Conquers assessment
During the period under review, the Secretariat facilitated
the compilation of the She Conquers assessment report
and shared its findings and recommendations with the
SANAC structures. The report will inform the development of
new HIV prevention plan. The Youth HIV Technical Working
Group (TWG) approved the She Conquers Assessment, for
implementation.

Review the She Conquers campaign: By reflecting on

the successes, challenges, opportunities and best practice
of the coordinated She Conquers campaign, this assessment made recommendations informed by Adolescent
Girls and Young Women (AGYW) themselves – in terms of
how to implement the most impactful response for AGYW
at risk and vulnerable to HIV. The youth provided a recommendation on the appropriate procedure in terms of how
the national campaign for AGYW should take place.

Accelerated prevention revolution report developed annually
South Africa is among the twenty-eight countries that participates in the Global HIV Prevention Coalition (GPC). Countries
participating in the GPC get measured on five prevention pillars that include HIV prevention on AGYW, HIV prevention on key
populations, condom distribution and promotion, voluntary medical male circumcision and Pre exposure prophylaxis. In the
period under review the NSP and Strategic Information Units worked with the National Department of Health and UNAIDS in
developing and submitting an annual score card on South Africa’s achievements on the five pillars.

Figure 1: Prevention Score Card

Key populations progress reports developed annually and submitted within set timeframes
During the period under review, the Secretariat continued to compile quarterly Key Populations (KP) progress reports for
sharing with the KP programme funder, the Center for Disease Control and prevention (CDC), to fulfil the requirements of the
cooperative agreement between the secretariat and CDC.

A midterm review of national strategies for key populations
During the period under review, the Secretariat finalised the new National Sex Worker Plan (NSWP) 2019 -2022.The Secretariat
facilitated the approval and launch of the plan through the SANAC Sex Work Sector, Sex Workers Technical Working Group
(SWTWG), Programme Review Committee (PRC), the Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC) and SANAC Plenary.
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Provincial AIDS Councils’ functionality criteria
During the period under review, the SANAC Secretariat
finalised an AIDS Councils functionality criteria for the
functionality assessment of the AIDS Councils. While the
criterion was specifically for the Provincial AIDS Councils
(PCAs), it is adaptable for the functionality assessment
of the District and Local AIDS Councils. The Secretariat
completed AIDS Councils Functionality Assessment for five
PCAs (Eastern Cape [EC], KwaZulu Natal [KZN], Limpopo
[LP], Northern Cape [NC] and Western Cape [WC]) including their districts. Some of the findings of the functionality
assessment indicate that,

Table 4 below depicts the findings of the functionality
assessment; full reports are available upon request.

TABLE 4: FUNCTIONALITY ASSESSMENTS FOR
FIVE OUT OF NINE PROVINCES
Functionality Area
Composition of the
Provincial Council on
AIDS (PCA)

ü Not all Sectors are well represented for participation in
the AIDS councils

ü Training and induction materials used in AIDS Councils

Sector representation

are outdated

ü District AIDS Councils (DACs) exist but not functioning
optimally

Sector participation

ü Local AIDS Councils (LACs) are not functioning in most
Provinces

ü Some PCA Secretariats are under stuffed

Capacity Building – Role
Clarification

ü PIPs are not costed, except for the Mpumalanga PIP
ü No PIP/Multisectoral District Implementation Plan
(MDIP) evaluations or reviews have been done

AIDS Council Functionality

ü There is no Monitoring and Evaluation support (M&E) at
the DAC level and,

ü Insufficient budget allocations for PCA activities.

DAC established and
represented
0

Based on the AIDS Councils Functionality Assessment, the
Secretariat developed action plans for each province.

DAC Function Optimally
0

PCA functionality assessments
During the period under review, the NSP Unit worked
with the PCA Heads of Secretariats (HoS) to review and
synthesize the 2019 PCA functionality assessment reports.
Upon receipt of all inputs from provinces, the NSP Unit
generated a consolidated presentation on functionality of
the PCAs with focus on five provinces, namely: EC, KZN, LP,
NC and WC.

Provincial Strategy
Development and
Implementation Planning
PCA Secretariat Human Resources
and Administration
Management
PCA Resource
Mobilisation, Budgeting
and Financial
Management
PCA Technical Capacity
Systems and Support
Structures
PCA Strategic
Information i.e.
Monitoring, Evaluation,
Reporting and Learning
(MERL)

Key Colour Code:
Green: Good
Orange: Average
Red: Poor
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AIDS Council Secretariat Guidelines

-

During the period under review, the Secretariat revised
the decision to develop AIDS Councils Secretariat specific
guidelines and resolved to develop PCA procedural
guidelines in line with the SANAC procedural guidelines.

Define the role of partners in the PCA HoS
meetings, and the partners to attend per invitation
or partners to send requests if they have issues to
share with the provinces

-

SANAC Management Committee to always attend
the scheduled PCA HoS meetings

The Secretariat pilot-tested the draft PCA procedural
guidelines with the North West (NW) Province since the
NW Province was in the process of re-establishing the AIDS
Councils. The NW PCA adopted the procedural guidelines
and implemented them to determine the multi-sectoral
composition of the AIDS Councils.
Furthermore, the secretariat provided technical assistance
to the NW PCA in the reestablishment of the AIDS Councils
(PCA, DACs and LACs), as follows:

During the third quarter of the period under review, the
Secretariat was not able to convene PCA HoS meeting. This
was due to several postponements because of competing
priorities. Similarly, the HoS meeting for the fourth quarter
of the period under review did not take place due to the
Presidential announcement of the lockdown in response to
the Coronavirus.

•

Development of the Concept Note for the
reestablishment of the NW PCA

Department of Social Development (DSD): National
SBCC programme

•

Development of the Roadmap and Project Plan for
the reestablishment

•

Suggesting the proposed model for the AIDS
Council

•

Outlining the roles and responsibilities for Premiers
and Mayors as chairpersons of the AIDS Councils

Not-for-Profit Organizations (NPOs) that were supported to
implement the SBC programme demonstrated considerable
level of maturity and were showing improvements in the
delivering a complete SBC compendium as required. Some
of the notable achievements in the period under review
include:

•

Providing guidelines for nominations of AIDS
Council members

•

Facilitating the recognition of the Premier as the
chairperson of the PCA and the approval of all
documents for the reestablishment of the NW AIDS
Council by the SANAC EXCO

•

The NW Province convened four
Consultation Meetings in July 2019.

•

The NW Premier convened a provincial consultation
meeting on August 14, 2019.

•

The country commemorated the World AIDS day
in the NW Province where the Deputy President of
South Africa, Mr. David Mabuza launched the NW
PCA.

•

•

Intensive roll out of the Men Championing Change
(MCC), District Men’s Parliament and Boys
Assemblies through strengthened partnership and
coordination by SANAC Men’s Sector.

•

Significant improvements in the utilisation of
programme management systems and tools;
resulting in effective programme management and
implementation.

District

Heads of Secretariat PCA meetings
During the second quarter of the period under review, the
Secretariat convened the quarterly PCA HoS meeting,
attended by all Heads of Secretariats (HoS) except the HoS
from the WC Province. Representatives from PEPFAR and
UNAIDS attended the meeting.
Key recommendations of the meeting:

-

To revise the purpose and the value of the HOS
meeting,

-

Set specific outcomes for the meeting to ensure
measurements of achievements

-

Clearly define the purpose of functionality
assessments and ensure necessary response to
close functionality gaps.

-

Set standing agenda items for the meeting and
include all the PCA HoS in developing the agenda

-

Improve on communication with the PCA HoS

Strengthened
partnerships
with
District
Department of Education, district municipal
offices, traditional leaders, sector, and other local
community organizations resulting in an increased
number of people participating in the programme.

Not-for-Profit
Support

Organizations

(NPOs)

Technical

In the period under review, SANAC contracted seventeen
NPOs to implement the SBC programme in eight provinces
excluding the Free State. SANAC Secretariat provided
technical support to the NPOs addressing the identified
gaps during monitoring. Support was in the following areas:

•

Training of NPOs on programme management
systems and tools for improved implementation

•

Strengthening the capacity of the NPOs on
programme content: strengthening their recruitment
strategies for enrolment and participation into You
Only Live Once (YOLO) programme

•

Training of NPOs on communication strategies,
covering the branding, marketing and utilisation of
Social Media platforms

•

Development of M&E framework for the SBC

programme, including a data collection and
analysis.
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Not for Profit Organisations Collaboration with
stakeholders

Table 5 below depicts the number of Men’s Parliament and
Boys ‘Assemblies held in the period under review.

NPOs established partnerships with key stakeholders
including the Departments of Education and Health, SAPS,
other NGOs, local municipalities and traditional authorities.
Such partnerships have intensified the NPOs’ efforts in
mobilizing programme participants and getting access and
utilization of local venues. In addition, the NPOs collaborated
with other stakeholders in hosting and participating on SBC
related campaigns e.g. substance abuse, gender based
violence campaigns.

TABLE 5: MEN’S PARLIAMENT AND BOYS
ASSEMBLIES HELD: JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2019

PERFORMANCE FOR THE DSD SBC PROGRAMME

Event

Date

Venue

Men’s
Parliament

25 July 2019

West Rand District
Municipality

Boys’ Summit

24 August 2019

Taung

Men’s
Parliament

25 August 2019

Vryburg North

Men’s
Parliament

25 September
2019

Buffalo City
Municipality

Boys’
Assembly

26 September
2019

Oliver Tambo
Municipality,
Nyandeni Great
Place

Boys Assembly

28 October 209

Seshego Limpopo

Men’s
Parliament

29 October 2019

Waterberg
Municipality
Modimolle Limpopo

You Only Live Once
The NPOs made great achievements in the implementation
of the You Only Live Once (YOLO) programme. A total of
151 563 youth aged 15 to 24 graduated on YOLO by
completing the 10 prescribed sessions, this is against an
annual target of 142 425 young people equating to
106 % achievement. The NPOs attributed this achievement
in their ability of establishing good relationships with local
partners; resulting in better recruitment, retention and
implementation. Despite numerous creative efforts, NPOs
reported a high dropout rate among youth out of school
due to high mobility.

Men Championing Change Programme
The MCC Programme contributed significantly in the
fight against gender-based violence in the country and
communities. The roll out of the MCC programme progressed
well.
Through various interventions such as dialogues,
workshops and special events, the NPOs collaborated with
traditional leaders, churches, local municipalities to mobilize
and train, 79 639 men and boys (120%) against an annual
target of 66 200. The programme also benefited from the
support of the Deputy Minister of Social Development
Honourable, Hendrietta Bagopane-Zulu who contributed
towards increasing the visibility of the programme and
helped in mobilizing strategic partners. .

Boys Assembly 19 November
2019

Bushbuckridge
in Mpumalanga
Province

Boys Assembly 25 February
in Gauteng
2020

Sedibeng
Vereeniging in

Men’s
6 and 7
Parliament and December 2019
Boys Assembly

George and Knysna,
Western Cape

Men’s
Parliament

27 January 2020

Springbok

Boys’
Assembly

22 February
2020

Pongola in KwaZulu
Natal

Boys Assembly 29 February
2020

Sedibeng,
Vereeniging

Men’s
Parliament

Amajuba,
Newcastle

23 February
2020

Family Matters programme (FMP)
In addition to the structured MCC programme implemented
by the NPOs, the SANAC Men’s sector, Azali Health convened
33 Men’s Parliaments and nine (9) Boys’ Summits in various
Districts. The SANAC Men’s Sector mobilized these events in
partnership with, local municipalities, traditional leaders and
church leaders and drew large numbers of men. During these
sessions, men and boys discussed and devised solutions
in tackling social and structural challenges confronting
communities, in particular gender-based violence.

During the period under review, 69 032 (target: 66 200)
104% parents/caregivers completed the six (6) sessions of
the FMP programme. Even though there was good progress
in the implementation of the FMP programme, NPOs
struggled in retaining the enrolled parents/caregivers in
sessions for the duration of the six sessions.

Ke Moja Substance Abuse Programme
All the NPOs received training on Ke Moja substance abuse
programme during April and May 2019 with coaching and
monitoring complementing the training in August 2019. The
roll out of the Ke Moja programme progressed well reaching
78 022 (Target: 66 200) 118% young people aged 15 to 24
years. There was a high demand of the KeMoja programme
especially from schools due to the high prevalence of
substance abuse in schools.
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Traditional Leaders Programme
The Rock Traditional Leaders programme capacitates
Traditional Leaders on HIV prevention, Sexual, Reproductive
Health and Rights. The programme trained 1767 traditional
leaders (target: 8241) (21.4%), expected to lead HIV
prevention and gender based violence activities in their
communities. NPOs continued to brand the SBC programme
during mass events, issuing print materials for sessions.

International Association of Providers of AIDS Care (IAPAC),
SANAC and South African Local Government Association
(SALGA) and the following were the achievements

•

Signed Memorandum of Understanding (MoU)
between UNAIDS, SANAC, SALGA, IAPAC signed
by IAPAC CEO (Jose Zuñiga during the London FTC
Conference).

•

Delegates from CoJ and eThekwini participated
in the London Fast -Track Cities Conference and
presented on their efforts to reach their NSP
targets including 90-90-90, reducing new infections
and eliminating discrimination.

•

IAPAC reported on their progress separately and
developed a FTC Dashboard which reflects basic
data on progress towards 90-90-90 (as approved
by District Metro Health/PDOH); developed a
stigma/discrimination training curriculum for health
care providers; and developed a community quality
of life survey (to be implemented).

•

FTC aligned with and integrated into MDIPs, Cheka
iMpilo (National Wellness Campaign) and local
leadership support was ongoing. Efforts to align
FTC work plans with Operation Phuthuma were
underway during the period under review.

Performance Review and Best Practice Sharing
Meeting of the NPOs.
SANAC Secretariat convened two performance review and
Best Practice sharing meetings with the NPOs on 3 to 4 June
2019 and 14 to 18 October 2019. Both meetings brought
together NPO management, finance managers and team
leaders to review progress, and exchange best practice in
the implementation. In addition, SANAC provided technical
support to the NPOs on programme implementation,
financial management, and Monitoring and Evaluation.
Recommendations from the meetings will help the NPOs in
strengthening the programme going forward.

National strategies for key populations
The SANAC Secretariat finalized the Social and Behaviour
Change Communication Strategy that is supporting the
implementation of the National Strategic Plan for HIV,
TB and STIs. During the period under review, the NSP Unit
developed consultant TORs for editing, layout and design of
the new NSWP 2019/2022

City of Johannesburg
Achievements during this period:

•

During the period under review, the Secretariat presented
both the report on the review of the current NSWP
2016/2019 and the new NSWP 2019/2022 to PRC with
minimal recommendations to ensure extensive and
meaningful consultations of the new Sex Worker Plan
2019/22 with the Civil Society Sectors.

City of Johannesburg strengthened capacity to
manage and coordinate AIDS response through
the appointment of a dedicated official, a
Deputy Director: Multi-sector Coordinator to the
Johannesburg AIDS Council Secretariat.

•

Eleven civil society sectors (Youth, Men’s, Women,
People Living with HIV [PLHIV], Sports, NonGovernmental Organisations [NGOs], LGBTI,
etc.) elected representatives to serve on the
Johannesburg AIDS Council.

Key population treatment cascades

•

The city published its first edition HIV district profile.

•

Draft Thembisa estimates for Johannesburg were
developed and shared with the City and partners.

During the period under review, the SANAC Secretariat
worked with the Sex Work Sector to develop and reach a
consensus on the Sex Workers treatment cascades and
populations size estimates. While the Sex Worker sector
agreed with the developed treatment cascades and the
size estimation, they continued to raise a concern on the
exclusion of other Sex Worker groups in this process. These
include male and transgender sex workers. The submission
of the sector is that this will lead to underestimating
the population of Sex Workers in the country leading to
further undermining the treatment cascades process for
the sector. During the period under review, the Secretariat
completed a draft Key Population (KP) dashboard guideline
and recommendations through the support of University
California San Francisco (UCSF).

Outcomes:

•

Meetings for re-establishment of Joint Action
Committee (JAC) held with the Member of
Mayoral Committee (MMC) for Health and Social
Development (Delegated function by Executive
Mayor of Johannesburg (JHB))

•

Partnerships with Organizations UNAIDS, IAPAC,
PEPFAR, Global Fund & other. Representing
Partners for JAC elected.

•

Municipal Fast Track Coordination (FTC)
During this period under review, the SANAC Secretariat held
several meetings with the City of Johannesburg (CoJ) and
eThekwini, which are the metros supported through the FTC
project by Joint United Nations Programme on HIV (UNAIDS),

•

Successful campaigns: Men’s Sector conducted
10 campaigns involving men, towards Women’s
Month (August) & Gender Based Violence. During
the main event, 1,300 men were reached on 9
August 2019.
Women’s Sector conducted Women’s Month Event
on 2 August 2019.
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EThekwini

•

Other achievements

Functionality assessment of the District AIDS
Council conducted and identified gaps and
recommendations for improvement.

•

The NSP Unit supported the Mayor with data to
Chair the AIDS Council meeting held in June.

•

Mayor successfully lobbied to appoint a relatively
senior official located in the Mayor’s Office to
coordinate the AIDS response in eThekwini.

•

Data capturers from 14 facilities were mentored
on data completeness, validation and use. This
increased their competence on DHIS tools and
improved reporting from the facilities.

•

City Health M&E manager received mentoring on
documentation and had an abstract accepted
at the FTC conference. Four abstracts from FTC
steering committee members were accepted and
presented at the Conference.

•

Draft Thembisa estimates for eThekwini developed
and shared with City and partners.

•

Strengthened
leadership

•

District AIDS Council Functionality Assessment
Report prepared.

•

•

capacity

for

effective

political

Total of 14 data capturers from selected facilities
mentored on data quality issues. This led to
improved data capturing and reporting on DHIS by
these facilities. It also improved outcomes reported
at the nerve centre meetings and its utility for
programme improvement.
Key stakeholders from government and civil
society convened to discuss gaps in the City plan
for the period under review and how to improve
coordination of the response.
Four abstracts accepted and presented at the
Fast Track Cities Conference held in London in
September 2019.

Engagement on South Africa Local Government
Association (SALGA) pledge annually
During this period under review, the Secretariat met
with SALGA and other stakeholders including UNAIDS,
IAPAC to discuss the strengthening of leadership for the
local government response through the Fast Track Cities
project. The Secretariat also met with SALGA in Cape Town
to introduce the SALGA Executive Director who will be
responsible for the Fast Track Municipalities Initiative and
the Capacity building of the AIDS Councils. SALGA shared
its plans to strengthen the AIDS Councils and agreed to
collaborate on the strengthening of the AIDS Councils at the
municipal level.
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The PTTT provides an opportunity to strategically
reposition the critical role of Goal 1: Accelerate prevention
to reduce new HIV and TB infections and STIs, building on
the latest prevention strategies, tracking of progress on
the implementation of various evidence based policy and
programme and through the generation and guidance of
resource mobilisation and allocation.

Youth HIV Prevention Technical Working Group (TWG)
The NSP Unit had engagements with the youth HIV
Prevention Technical Working Group (TWG) during the
period under review. The NSP Unit and the youth reviewed
the programme packages of service, policies and priorities,
geographic focus and targets, during these engagements.
The purpose of the meetings was to ensure non-duplication
of youth HIV prevention programmes. The focus of the
group to foster multi-sectoral engagement and layering of
programmes was very successful. This encouraged a joint
developmental and focused approach to addressing youth.
The objectives of first sitting of the TWG during the period
under review were as follows;

Outcomes:

•

Prevention Technical Task Team

i.

Share the first draft of the Adolescent Girls and
Young Women (AGYW) risk assessment tool for
inputs

ii.

Discuss the status and scale up plans for
implementation of Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis
(PrEP) for AGYW

iii.

Share information and garner input into the planned
Social Impact Bond for AGYW

The objectives of the second sitting of the TWG was to:

i.

Finalise the review of the AGYW risk assessment
tool for piloting

ii.

Discuss the status and scale up plans of HIV SelfScreening

iii.

Share information, identify partnerships and garner
support for the Department of Women’s Sanitary
Dignity Framework

The TWG approved the She Conquers Assessment, for
implementation.

Youth risk and vulnerability assessment tool: The

finalisation of the youth HIV risk and vulnerability assessment will support the programme on the ground to better
respond to the unique needs of individual youth. The tool
can also play a role in allowing youth to assess their own
risks and vulnerability and increase their risk perceptions.
Risk assessment tool developed, revised and approved
by the youth HIV Prevention TWG.

The NSP implementation unit also worked with UNAIDS and
the National Department of Health to begin the process of
developing a new health sector strategy for Combination
HIV Prevention to support Goal 1 of the NSP.
The unit also convened a youth HIV Prevention technical
working group on 15 November 2019. The focus of the
group is to foster multi-sectoral engagement and layering
of programmes for successful implementation of youth
programmes in the country.

Man who have Sex with other Men (MSM) and TransGender (TG) Global Fund implementation Coordination
The secretariat held an extended consultation meeting with
the MSM and TG. The objectives of the meeting were to:

Interventions for Key populations
During the period under review, the Secretariat convened
an LGBTI Technical Working group (TWG) meeting to review
progress on the programme. Mr. Steve Letsike, representing
the Civil Society Forum (CSF) and Ms. Coceka Nogoduka
(NSP Executive Manager) co-chaired the TWG meeting. The
meeting attendees made the following resolutions:

•

•
•

The existing TWG be dissolved as it was only meant
to support the development of the LGBTI Plan, and
a new TWG be established with revised ToRs to
oversee the implementation of the plan.
The Secretariat to identify new members for the
revised TWG
Approved the consultant ToR for the MTR of the
LGBTI Plan

The Secretariat also developed ToR for the Mid-Term Review
(MTR) of the National LGBTI HIV Plan 2017-2022, which got
approval during the LGBTI TWG meeting. The review of the
LGBTI HIV plan will commence in the next reporting period.
The Secretariat coordinated three Sex Worker dialogues,
two in Limpopo Province and one in North West Province.
The objective of the dialogues was to facilitate a safe
space wherein Sex Workers would be able to talk openly
about their challenges with government. The Member of the
Executive Council (MEC) of Health, Dr Phophi Ramathuba
hosted the Limpopo dialogues while the Deputy Minister
of Police Honorable Cassel Mathale hosted the North West
dialogue. The dialogues were coordinated in partnership
with the Sex Work Sector and were attended by the
Provincial Council on AIDS (PCA), Provincial Departments
of Health, Social Development and Home Affairs; District
and Local Municipalities including their AIDS Councils, South
African Police Services (SAPS), UNAIDS and local partners.
The following summarises the issues raised by Sex Workers
during the dialogues:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Abuse and harassment by police including sexual
favors in the place of arrest
Loss of business due to police scarring clients away
by threatened arrests
Inability to access health services
Lack of shelter wherein Sex Workers have to share
small and overpopulated spaces with increased
risk to contact and spread TB
Infights between the Sex Work communities over
the small operating space
Struggle to renew permits as well as ill-treatment
by the Department of Home Affairs
Inability to improve their skills due to lack of
opportunities to further their education (lack
of opportunities from higher education for sex
workers)

•

Provide programmatic update and onward
implementation of the MSM and TG programmes

•

To share and discuss GF MSM and TG module and
agree on implementation approaches

•

Officially introduce the GF MSM and TG principal
recipient (PR) and the Sub-recipients (SRs).

Peer Education evaluation for the Global Fund fundedSex Work Programme
The Unit coordinated a Sex Worker stakeholder consultation
meeting to disseminate the outcomes of the Peer Education
evaluation for the Sex Worker Programme conducted by
NACOSA through Global Fund. Key highlights and findings
of the evaluation are:
Peer Educators reported:

•

Personal growth: emotional development, improved
life-skills and increased self-esteem, confidence and
sense of dignity.

•

Improved skills and knowledge: through their work,
sharing from other peers, mentorship and training and
some pursuit of formal basic education.

•

Increased urgency and purpose: due to employment, an
opportunity to contribute with passion, and listened to,
including taken seriously.

•

Increased socio-economic benefits: through regular
income that improved lifestyles, and less compromising
of safety during sex work out of desperation for money.

•

Healthier behaviours: including more consistent safe
sex, improved personal care and hygiene, rehabilitation
from or reduced use of drugs and/or alcohol, better
health-seeking behaviour, improved adherence to HIV
treatment.

•

Every peer obtained peer educator training.

People Who Inject Drugs High-Level Dialogue
During the period under review, the Secretariat convened a
high-level national dialogue on PWID led by the CEO. The
dialogue occurred in Durban on the 14 June 2029, post
SAAIDS 2019 Conference. The meeting recommended
the development of national PWID factsheets targeting
leadership at the local government spheres. These will serve
as advocacy material for the programme at this level
During the period under review, the Secretariat partnered
with TB HIV Care, South African Network of People
Using Drugs (SANPUD), NDOH, University of Cape Town
(UCT), SAHCS, University of Pretoria (UP), NACOSA and
international organisations (WHO, World Health Assembly
(WHA), Medical San-Frontier (MSF), Medecins du Monde
(MdM) to host the 1st African Regional Conference on
Hepatitis Care in Substance Users International Network on
Hepatitis in Substance Abusers (INHSU) which took place in
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Cape Town from the 17 – 20 February. The main conference
took place on the 19th and 20th, Advocacy Day around
harm reduction and HIV/HCV elimination on the 17th and
Drug Policy Day on the 18th.

TB Caucus
Due to the SA TB Caucus Secretariat support, the National
Assembly and National Council of Provinces hosted a
joint sitting on the 13 March 2020, and had a Debate on
Tuberculosis (TB): United in the fight to end TB – A challenge
to all South Africans.

SA TB Caucus Secretariat supported the writing and
publishing of an OpEd: World TB Day; entitled: “Why SA’s
strides against TB can pay off in the fight against COVID-19”;
(as published by the Bhekisisa, Centre for Health Journalism
on the March 24, 2020 on and written by Hon. Dr Sibongiseni
Dhlomo, Member of Parliament and the Chairperson of the
Portfolio Committee on Health in his capacity as Chairperson
of the SA Chapter of the TB Caucus.)

On 24 March 2020, in supporting the Stop TB Partnership
global initiative to “Light up the World in red to End TB,
the South African TB Caucus in partnership with the South
African Parliament demonstrated commitment of our
leaders in response to TB by lighting up our iconic Parliament
building as part of this worldwide campaign.

approved the proposal and indicated that funding was to
coordinate and monitor the multi-sectoral implementation
of the National Strategic Plan for HIV, TB and STIs 20172022. Funds received are for strengthening coordination
and implementation of adolescent girls and young women
and key populations programmes. This is a three-year
funding renewed on annual basis.

During the period under review, the NSP Unit coordinated
with the PCA HoS to develop PCA COVID-19 activity Plans.
All provinces worked on and submitted their plans. EC, FS,
KZN, LP, MP and Gauteng had their plans submitted to their
respective Global Fund (GF) Principal Recipients (PRs) and in
principle, the PRs approved the plans. However, the Country
Coordinating Mechanism (CCM) deferred the approval to
the new financial year. Northern Cape shared their plan with
the NSP Unit, as they do not receive donor support. NW and
WC did not submit any plans

National coordination and PCA support

•

During the period under review, the Secretariat
continued to build strong relationship with the AIDS
Councils at various levels. The Secretariat supported
the following AIDS Councils meetings:

The Secretariat finalised the development of the TB Caucus
101 information leaflet for distribution to all TB Caucus
relevant stakeholders.

Adolescent Girls and Young Women

During the period under review, the Secretariat finalised
and published the Terms of Reference (TORs) for the
procurement of a consultant to develop the Youth HIV
Prevention Campaign. The Secretariat hosted a Special
Youth HIV Prevention Technical Working Group on 21
February 2020 with a purpose of:
a) Mapping AGYW programmes across the country in
terms of programme package, targets and geographic
coverage
b) Discussing coordination of AGYW/youth HIV
prevention programmes from national to district levels
(what is the status quo and what is the ideal model)
and
c) Developing recommendations for partner
engagement and sharing best practice meetings
across provinces.

Donors’ Interventions to curb the impact of the
coronavirus (COVID-19)
The NSP Unit developed and submitted a COVID-19 activity
proposal to CDC to request for the use of the SANAC
CDC Cooperative Agreement (CoAg) funds to support the
protection of key and vulnerable populations. The CDC
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o

Meeting with the Premier of the North West
Province and the chair of the newly reestablished PCA on 28 January 2020, to
strengthen the PCA

o

Gauteng PCA Stakeholders’ meeting on the
25-26 February 2020 to strengthen the PCA

o

Sedibeng District AIDS Council (DAC)
stakeholders meeting on the 28 February 2020
to strengthen the DAC

o

Free State PCA Plenary meeting held on 12
March 2020 chaired by the Premier of the Free
State,

o

North West PCA launched their first DAC in Dr
Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District on 12 March
2020.

o

Gauteng PCA Plenary meeting held on 13
March 2020 chaired by Premier David Makhura.

All the meetings were to strengthen the AIDS Councils to
function optimally and addressed the following themes
in line with the AIDS Councils Capacity Building:

-

Leadership, governance and coordination of the
AIDS Councils

-

Understanding roles and mandate of AIDS Councils

-

Roles of the chairpersons (Premiers and Civil
Society chairs) of the AIDS Council

-

Roles, functions and minimum recommended
structure of AIDS Councils secretariats

-

Understanding monitoring & reporting of the multisectoral response

TABLE 6: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Strategic
Objectives

Performance indicator

Estimated
Actual
performance Performance
2019/2020

Foster dialogue
and build
consensus
so that
government,
civil society
and private
sector and
development
partners
cooperate to
achieve the
goals of the
NSP.
• Advise
government
on HIV and
AIDS, TB and
STI policy and
strategy and
related matters.
• Strengthen
governance,
leadership and
management of
the response to
HIV, TB and STI.

Number of reports from the
Social and Structural Drivers and
Prevention Technical Task Team
meetings developed annually

Number of Government sector
plans developed to support NSP
Implementation annually.
Number of Costed PIPs published on
the SANAC Website
Technical assistance with a
Checklist

4

1

3
4

Comments

2019/2020

1

The SSD met once since its launch
and the sub-committee was
established and the sub-committee
developed the priority themes for
SSD.

3

The initial target was the DoH,
however, through our regular
engagements with Departments of
Transport and Police, a request was
made to assist in the development of
their departmental plans

1
Mpumalanga

She Conquers Assessment report
developed within set timeframes

1

1

Accelerated Prevention Revolution
Report developed annually

1

1

Number of Key Populations
Progress Reports developed
annually and submitted within set
timeframes

3

3

A Mid-term review of national
strategies for key populations
conducted for approval, within set
timeframes

1

1

Provincial AIDS Council’s functionality
criteria developed and published on
the SANAC website

1

1

Number of PCA Functionality
Assessments conducted annually
and tabled at the quarterly Heads of
Secretariat meeting

9

5

Approved AIDS Councils Secretariat
Guidelines developed.

1

1

Number of Heads of Secretariat (HoS)
PCA meeting reports developed
annually

4

1

Annual business plan developed for the
implementation of the DSD National
SBCC programme.

1

1

Number of contracts signed
annually with NPOs across 9
provinces to implement the DSD
National SBCC programme.

15

18

Number of new national strategies
for key populations developed and
published

1

1
NSWP

Number of Key Population
treatment cascades developed
annually

1

1
FSW Treatment
Cascades

Number of Municipal Fast Track
Coordination Meetings held
annually.

1

1

Number of reports on engagement
on SALGA Pledge annually

2

2

Only Mpumalanga costed its PIP,
others were not developed due to
financial constraints

Four were done in the previous
reporting period

There was a need to review the
PCA HoS meetings SOP resulting
in temporary suspension of the
meetings.
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Programme 4: Strategic Information
Purpose: The Strategic Information (SI) Unit monitors and evaluates the implementation of the NSP through the M&E
frameworks for the NSP, Provincial Implementation Plans (PIPs) and Multi-Sectoral District Implementation Plans (MDIPs). The
unit collects and analyses data reported by sectors that deliver services at all levels. High quality data guides decision-making
at all levels. Strategic information is also critical for programme planning, programme review, evaluation and evidence-base
regarding outcomes that can be used to inform planning and policy-making.

Progress and Achievement on Strategic Deliverables
Reviewed M&E Plan
The review of the M&E Plan will take place upon the finalization of the Mid-Term Review (MTR) of the NSP by end of August
2020 as per the approved no cost extension to ensure completion.

National wellness campaign report from the nerve center
In ensuring better monitoring and reporting of the campaign, the SI Unit developed a dashboard tool to monitor the
performance progress for all the Cheka Impilo national wellness campaigns. The tool monitors both biomedical and nonbiomedical indicators. The Cheka Impilo Dashboard is a tool used to support reporting and decision-making for the Wellness
Campaign. AIDS Councils, Multi-sectoral Implementers, government, and civil society use the tool across all levels of reporting
in the SANAC Nerve Centers. SI Unit national and provincial personnel received training on dashboards, during the period
under review. The SI Unit personnel cascaded the training of the Cheka Impilo Dashboard tool to the civil society sector.
The SI Unit presented the Cheka Impilo Dashboard tool at the International Conference on AIDS and STIs in Africa (ICASA)
conference in Rwanda.

Figure 2: Poster: Cheka Impilo Dashboard Tool

Published
Reports

Focus

for

Impact

(FFI)

The FFI application represents an
innovative way to reduce the morbidity
and mortality associated with HIV and
TB including morbidity from STIs by
designing and packaging appropriate
interventions that target the areas
with the highest disease burden and
populations that are disproportionately
at risk of new infection. Decisionmakers from government, donor
funders and civil society use the FFI
platform to support decision-making
in the response to the epidemic. During
the reporting period, the SI Unit ensured
optimal functioning of the FFI platform
by engaging with the service provider
for the FFI platform in refresher training.

NSP Research agenda
The SI Unit could not develop the research
agenda during the period under review.
The SI Unit focused on establishing the
SI TWG which will actively participate in
the development of the research agenda.
The purpose of the research agenda is to
determine the number of research studies
conducted since 2015 (Baseline, to date);
including research studies underway and
those in the pipeline.
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Signed data sharing agreements in place and being implemented
During the period under review, the SI Unit facilitated the data sharing agreement between the SANAC Trust and the Minerals
Health and Safety Council (MHSC) under the Department of Mineral Resources. The MHSC shared their annual report for the
period 2018/19 to fulfill the requirements of the data sharing agreement. Below is a snapshot of the HIV and TB data from all
the 850 mines in the country.

TABLE 7: HIV AND TB DATA FROM THE MINES IN SOUTH AFRICA 2018/19

Source: Mine health and Safety Inspectorate 2018/19
Additionally, the SI Unit embarked on the process of collaborating with all stakeholders to increase data demand and use
through the development of the Situation Room. The Situation Room is an interactive software platform which will enable
SANAC, government departments, other authorities, including programme implementers to effectively use data sets in realtime for decision-making. The Situation Room enables interactive and dynamic visualisation of the national and sub-national
data, showing progress towards targets set for the NSP indicators. In the Situation Room SANAC will be able to show key
national data, such as Universal Test and Treat (UTT) numbers and progress towards targets, sharing such biomedical and
non-biomedical data reports with policy makers for effective decision-making.
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Published Quarterly Factsheets on NSP targets
The development of quarterly factsheets occurs in retrospect. During the period under review, Provincial M&E Officers
developed and submitted quarterly factsheets for the period January to March 2019.
Factsheets provide a snap view of NSP and PIP progress towards quarterly achievements against set targets. The following
indicators were presented on the Factsheets;

•

Voluntary Medical Male Circumcision (VMMC): Goal 1 NSP 2017-2022 (Total number of VMMC performed)

•

Condom Distribution: Goal 1 NSP 2017-2022 (male and female condoms)

•

Incidence of MUS (Per 1000): Goal 1 NSP 2017-2022 (New Male Urethritis Syndrome (MUS) rate)

•

Antiretroviral therapy (ART): Goal 2 NSP 2017-2022 (Total number of people on ART)

•

HIV Counselling and Testing (HCT): Goal 2 NSP 2017-2022 (Total number of people counselled and tested)

•

Antiretroviral therapy (ART): Goal 2 NSP 2017-2022

•

Total adults started on ART per month

•

TB Indicators: Goal 2: NSP 2017-2022 (TB treatment success rate, TB clients lost to follow up rate, Proportion of TB/HIV
co-infected patients on ART)

In the absence of Provincial M&E Officers, the SI Unit focused on ensuring the collation of NSP Targets for the period 1 April
2017 to 30 June 2019 to fulfil the requirements of the Abridged MTR Report.
The SI Unit could not consistently develop Quarterly Factsheets due to the termination of Provincial M&E contracts in
September 2019, hence no capacity at provincial level.

Approved M&E Routine assessments
reports
The structural changes in the SI unit were
a deterrent factor in conducting the M&E
Routine Assessments. The SI Unit will work
with the Global Fund Principal Recipients
(PRs) to determine the level of support
required by the newly appointed Provincial
M&E Personnel. Additionally, the SI Unit and
the Global Fund PRs will have consensus on
the way forward in terms of the frequency of
the assessments.

NSP Mid-Term Review (MTR) Report
SANAC appointed a consultancy firm to
conduct the Mid-Term Review (MTR) of the
National Strategic Plan (NSP) for HIV, TB and
STIs 2017-2019. The overall goal of NSP MTR
was to provide an in-depth analysis of the
NSP implementation; with a specific focus on
progress made towards achieving the targets
set for each of the eight goals. In the period
under review, the consultancy firm collected
data from various stakeholders including
government departments for the compilation
of the MTR report. Findings of the report can
be found in the full MTR report.

Figure 3: NSP MTR Summary Report
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Global AIDS Monitoring (GAM) 2018
During the period under review, the SI Unit compiled the Global AIDS Monitoring Report (GAM). The report reviewed the
progress of South Africa towards the commitments set in the 2016 United Nations Political Declaration on HIV and AIDS.
Figure 2 below illustrates the highlights of the report findings for each of the ten commitments.

Figure 3: Summary of the findings of the GAM 2018

The SI Unit submitted GAM semi-annual data from both the public and private (Medical Aid Schemes) sectors to UNAIDS. The
total number of people on Antiretroviral Treatment in both the public and private sectors increased by about 5.5% (261 663),
from 4 788 139 (January to December 2018) to 5 049 802 (January to December 2019). Table 9 below depicts the total
number of people on Antiretroviral Treatment during the period January to June 2019.

TABLE 8: NUMBER OF PEOPLE ON ANTIRETROVIRAL TREATMENT - JANUARY TO JUNE 2019
Sectors

Adults

Children

Total

Public

4 585 455

156 571

4 742 026

Private

302 987

4 789

307 776

4 888 442

161 360

5 049 802

Total number of people on HIV
Treatment
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HIV Estimates
In line with the GAM, the SI unit attended a meeting for the approval of the Thembisa HIV Estimates. The outcome of the
meeting was to solicit approval of the Thembisa Estimates Version 4.2. Table 10 below are some of the estimates for high-level
key indicators approved.

TABLE 9: HIGHLIGHTS OF THEMBISA ESTIMATES VERSION 4.2
INDICATORS

ESTIMATES

Total HIV infections in 2018

7.4 million (7.2-7.6 million)

Total pediatric HIV infections

274 000 (254 000-291 000)

New infections in 2017-18

249 000 (231 000-266 000)

Mother-To-Child-Transmission in 2017-18

11 500 (10 100-12 800)

HIV-related deaths in 2017-18

80 000 (67 000-90 000)

Percentage of HIV+ individuals diagnosed in 2018

90.5% (90.0-91.0%)

Percentage of HIV-diagnosed individuals on ART

68.4% (66.6-70.8%)

Percentage of ART patients with VL <1000

88.4% (86.3-90.5%)

Percentage of all HIV+ with VL <1000

54.7% (52.5-56.9%)

Strategic Information Technical Task Team tabled at the PRC within the stipulated period
The PRC approved the Terms of Reference of the SI TTT in January 2019. During the period under review, the SI Unit prepared
a list of proposed TTT members for approval by the CEO. The SI Unit intends to establish a TWG for the Situation Room and
the development of the research agenda during the next reporting period.

Other Achievements
Participation at the ninth SA AIDS Conference 2019
The SI Unit actively participated in the SA AIDS Conference 2019 as follows:

i.

Private sector poster

Figure 4: Private Sector Poster: SA AIDS Conference 2019.

The SI Unit developed and presented a poster for the private sector during the SA AIDS conference, which took place from
10 to 14 June 2019. Below is a screenshot of the private sector poster, which focused on enticing other private sector
entities responding to the epidemic but not reporting to depict the national picture to join the SANAC private sector
initiative.
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i.

ii.

Private sector satellite session
The SI Unit coordinated and provided technical assistance to ensure successful implementation of the private sector
session at the SA AIDS Conference 2019. The topic of the private sector session was, “Unleashing the potential
impact of the broader private sector in responding to the epidemic, in line with the National Strategic Plan for HIV,
TB and STIs 2017-2022. The overall outcome of the session was the co-option of other private sector entities into
the SANAC private sector data collection initiative. Presenters of the private sector session were from the following
organizations: World Health Organization (WHO) International Labour Organization (ILO), Joint United Nations
Programme on HIV/AIDS (UNAIDS), the Council for Medical Schemes (CMS), South African Business Coalition on
Health and AIDS (SABCOHA), Med-Scheme, including SANAC.

iii.

Comprehensive sexuality Education (CSE) Poster
The SI Unit developed and presented a poster on Multi-sectoral coordination, using a participatory approach to
develop a monitoring, evaluation and reporting framework for CSE with a focus on Mpumalanga as a case study. A
screenshot of the CSE poster presented at the AIDS Conference is below.

Figure 5: Comprehensive Sexuality Education Poster

iv.

Oral Presentation
The SI Unit did an oral presentation on progress made on implementation of Provincial Strategic Plan on HIV, TB and
STIs 2012-2016 at Limpopo Province; during the SA AIDS Conference, 2019.
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SANAC Data Repository/Situation Room

Private sector coordination

Situation Room Concept note

During the reporting period, the SANAC Private Sector
Initiative evolved towards coopting other private sector
entities responding to the epidemic but not sharing their
data to inform national progress. The SI Unit facilitated a
data sharing agreement between the SANAC Trust and the
Mines Health and Safety Council, under the Department
of Mineral Resources. Additionally, the SI Unit conducted
preliminary engagements with organisations working with
cash paying patients in order to ensure access to data for
cash paying patients on HIV treatment. The engagements
on having access to data for cash paying patients will
continue in the next financial year.

The SI Unit drafted the concept for the Situation Room,
after one SI Unit personnel and two SI Unit personnel
visited Geneva and Kenya, respectively. The purpose of the
trips was to have deeper and meaningful understanding
of the concept of the Situation Room and its capabilities.
The SANAC Situation Room will utilize existing data
management systems to visualize strategic information
through a simplified user-friendly platform for Policy and
programmes decision-making processes.
Subsequent to the development of the SR concept note,
UNAIDS conducted Regional Training Programme for the
Situation Room (National data repository for all HIV, TB and
STIs data). The purpose of the training programme was to
ensure adequate capacity of national authorities to initiate,
manage and maintain their (Health) Situation Room. The
Global Fund committed to fund the development of the
situation room including remunerating key two personnel to
manage and maintain the Situation Room for sustainability
and ownership by the secretariat. The SI Unit envisages the
development of the Situation Room to commence in the
next financial year, following the recruitment of the service
provider to develop the Situation Room and the required
personnel.

SANAC Annual Report 2018/19
The SI Unit led in the compilation of the SANAC Annual
Report 2018/19. The report tracks performance against
predetermined objectives for each of the six programme
areas for the SANAC Secretariat, as stipulated in the Annual
Performance Plan (APP) 2018/19. The SI Unit provided
technical assistance to all programme areas to ensure
alignment and adequate reporting of indicators in the
Annual Performance Plan (APP).
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Social Behaviour Change (SBC)
The Unit continued to provide monitoring and evaluation
technical support to NPOs. The SI Unit participated in the
quarterly review meeting with DSD and NPOs. The Unit
introduced an excel tool for use for both the Capturing
and Analysis of SBC data. The tool has the capability of
analysing data in the form of appropriate visuals such as
pivot tables, graphs and charts.

World TB Day
The Unit formed part of the Mpumalanga provincial
M&E Technical Task Team. During planning and buildup activities for World TB day. The SI Unit attended a
few meetings, shared Cheka Impilo M&E tools with TTT
members, and recommended their use for reporting.

Annual Performance Plan (APP)
The Unit coordinated the development of the Annual
Performance Plan for the Trust for the year 2020/2021. The
SI Unit also monitored the implementation of the APP on
a quarterly basis and took the lead in compiling the CEO’s
quarterly reports to the Board of Trustees. Additionally, the
unit developed a dashboard to track the performance of
the 2020/2021 APP.

TABLE 10: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Strategic
Objectives

Performance
indicator

Estimated
Actual
performance Performance
2019/2020

• Advise
government
on HIV and
AIDS, TB and
STI policy and
strategy related
matters
• Strengthen
governance,
leadership and
management of
the response to
HIV, TB and STI
• Strengthen
the multisectoral
response to HIV,
TB and STI as a
contribution to
the overall social
and economic
development of
South Africa
• Monitor
performance
against the
set targets
set in the NSP,
ensuring mid,
and end term
evaluations for
the prevailing
NSP
• Create and
strengthen
partnerships for
an expanded
national
response in
South Africa
to HIV, TB and
STI among
government
agencies,
civil society,
development
partners, the
private sector
and people
living with HIV,
TB and ST

Comments

2019/2020

Reviewed NSP
M&E Plan

1

0

Review of the M&E Plan delayed
because of the delay in finalizing
the MTR of the NSP for HIV, TB
and STIs 2017-2022. Plan will be
reviewed in the next reporting
period.

Approved
National
Wellness
Campaign
Report from the
Nerve Center
submitted on an
quarterly
Basis

4

1

No comprehensive use of the
Cheka Impilo reporting tools

Published FFI
Reports on the
SANAC website

4

0

Delayed capacity to fully use FFI

Developed
NSP Research
Agenda

1

0

The research agenda will
only be developed upon the
establishment of an SI TTT.

Signed data
sharing agreements in place
and being implemented

2

2

Published
Quarterly
Factsheets on
NSP targets

4

1

Absence of Provincial M&E
personnel to support the
deliverable due to structural
adjustments within the
organization. All provincial M&E
positions were terminated in the
second quarter of the period
under review.

Approved
M&E Routine
Assessment
Reports

9

0

Same comment as above.

Approved and
published MidTerm Review1
report

1

0

2 Abridged MTR Reports
produced. The delay in finalizing
the full MTR Report was due to
lack of TB data.

Global AIDS
Monitoring
(GAM) Report

1

1

Achieved

Approved
minutes of the
SI TTT tabled at
the PRC within
the stipulated
Period

4

0

SI Unit proposed names of
members of the TTT for approval
by the CEO.
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Programme 5: Resource Mobilisation and
Donor Coordination

Report of annual expenditure in SA for key
programmes described in the NSP 2017-2022

Resource Mobilisation Unit

The choice of what programme should be focused on has
not yet been made.

Purpose: The purpose of this unit is to mobilise, coordinate,
influence, monitor, and evaluate the use of resources for the
implementation of the NSP, following the strategic direction
described in the NSP.

Report on co-funding raised annually from the
private sector

Progress and Achievement on Strategic Deliverables

Commitments for co-funding of the GF programme
implemented by SABCOHA were in place but
implementation of their programme did not start in quarter
one of the period under review, due to delays in signing of
contracts, hence these were not yet realised.

There was progress made towards
deliverables for the period under review.

implementing

Resource Mobilisation Strategy
A clear description of the contribution of SANAC Secretariat
to the implementation of the NSP is evident in the NSP
including substantial work described in Goal 7. The challenge
was that the funding for the secretariat limited what the
secretariat was able to do and this posed a risk to the
implementation of the NSP, as the secretariat did not have
enough funds to respond to the responsibilities identified
in the NSP. The resource mobilisation strategy assisted in
understanding how SANAC could address this challenge.

Costing Technical Task Team
The Programme Review Committee (PRC) approved the
terms of reference of the Technical Task Team (TTT) and
finalised the membership of the Costing TTT. The PRC will
schedule the first meeting after finalising the membership of
the costing TTT. The membership will be finalised in Q 2 for
the first meeting to take place in Q 3. This TTT will provide
essential support and guidance to the resource Mobilisation
Committee.

Innovative NSP financing option pilots
The secretariat through the involvement in the GF
Country Coordinating Mechanism (CCM) Oversight
Committee provided oversight to the implementation of
the Social Impact Bond (SIB) for adolescent girls and
young women, led by the Medical Research Council. The
GF CCM did not yet approve the budget allocated to the
SIB from the GF, so that activities for the launch of the
SIB are not yet finalised.

Review of expenditure on HIV, TB and STIs in SA
The Global Fund raised funding for the annual expenditure
review of HIV, TB and STI. The National Department of
Health (NDoH) Finance Branch, Health Accounts unit
managed the funds raised. The signing of the contract
between the Global Fund (GF) and the NDOH occurred late
in quarter one of the period under review. The work on this
review will start later in the year, on a date to be confirmed.
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Report on the annual expenditure in implementation
of the nine provincial implementation plans.
The NDoH conducts quarterly reviews on the expenditure
for the implementation of the Department of Health’s
contribution to the provincial implementation plans (through
the District Implementation Plans) while the National
Treasury reviews and monitors expenditure annually, using
the conditional grant for HIV, TB and community outreach
services. The Resource Mobilisation Unit raised funds for the
costing of the PIPs and their annual expenditure from the
GF but due to delays in signing the grants and contracts,
this work has not yet started and does not yet have an
approved start date.

Global Fund Unit
Purpose: Provide secretariat and technical services to

the Country Coordinating Mechanism (CCM) and work
in collaboration with the CCM. The other purpose of the
Unit is to monitor programme implementation to ensure
constant disbursement of funding from the GF, with a focus
on reaching the intended beneficiaries of the programme,
including optimal management and effective performance
of Principal Recipients (PRs), as expected by the CCM.

Global Fund (GF) CCM
The GF Unit convened its first meeting on 19 June 2019.
Discussions during the meeting included the following:
issue of Digital Square Platform, approving the Male
Sexual Partners Programme and Social Impact Bond. The
Oversight included strategic recommendations as well.
Meeting attendees discussed the CCM evolution in depth.

The GF Unit held another CCM meeting on 30 September
2019. The focus of the meeting was on the review of
the quarter two Oversight Report, which captured the
Principal Recipients’ programme performance and financial
expenditure.
The CCM held the other meeting on 3 December 2019.
The focus of the meeting was the finalization of the CCM
evolution process and restructuring. The CCM approved the
recommendation of the reduction of the CCM structure to
21 members (excluding alternates). The CCM also received
the Quarter two Oversight Report. The Global Fund provided

technical assistance to the CCM to conduct a CCM Evolution
Exercise. This served as an introductory GF process to
restructure the CCM. The evolution process aims to improve
the performance of CCM, including strategic engagement
at the national level to ensure independent governance
functions and ultimately developing programmes that are
more sustainable. The CCM finally concluded the Evolution
Process by reducing the number of CCM members to 21.
GF Unit scheduled another CCM meeting for quarter four
of the period under review on 27 March 2020. However,
the meeting did not take place as scheduled, after the
President’s announcement of a 21-day long lock down to
curb the spread of the COVID 19 pandemic. This was then
re-scheduled to the next reporting period.

Oversight committee reports
There was no implementation during the first quarter of the
period under review. However, the Oversight Committee
met and provided technical assistance to the PRs to ensure
that preparations for implementation were in the right
direction. PCA members focused on expediting the signing
of the Memoranda of Understanding (MoU) to ensure timely
programme implementation. There was an ad-hoc meeting
for the Oversight Committee. The purpose of the meeting
was to discuss the Social Impact Bond (SIB) investments.
This meeting was held on 30 April 2019, for the purpose of
understanding the SIB previous grant and highlighting the
achievements of the implementers for the previous grant.
The Oversight Committee indicated that the SIB served as
an innovation and continuation of the previous grant.
Oversight Committee met again on 18 June 2019, where
they were officially looking at quarter one reports. Although
there were no targets for quarter one; it is important to
note that assistance was given in order to ensure quick
preparation and scale up of programmes.
Another oversight committee meeting was held from 9 to
11 September 2019. During the meeting, PRs presented
their Quarter two reports on their grant implementation
results both programmatic and financial. Most PRs officially
started their implementation during the second quarter
of the period under review. The Oversight Committee
also received training on how to conduct oversight as per
evolution guidelines.
The Oversight Committee enlightened the CCM in terms
of what the CCM evolution would entail. The Oversight
Committee scheduled detailed training to discuss the CCM
evolution for October 1 and 2, 2019.
The GF Unit held the Quarter three oversight committee
meeting on 25 November 2019 in Port Elizabeth. During
this meeting, the PRs presented their Quarter three reports
on their grant implementation results both programmatic
and financial. GF Unit scheduled the Oversight Committee
meeting for quarter four on 30 March 2020, in Richards Bay.
However, the meeting did not take place as scheduled, after
the President’s announcement of a 21-day long lock down,
from 26 March 2020, to curb the spread of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Disbursements to Principal recipients
The Global Fund released the country allocation for
the period 2022 to 2025. The Global Fund allocated

US$536,766,626 to South Africa, for HIV, tuberculosis and
building resilient and sustainable systems for health (RSSH).
The allocation split is as follows: HIV - $ 491,237,860 and
TB - $ 45,528,766.
For the period April- June 2019 the disbursements to
Principal Recipients (PRs) was USD 14 754 601 excluding
disbursements to the NDoH. NDoH received annual
disbursements converted to rand. Three PRs received the
new grant with lower disbursements than before.
For the period July to September 2019 disbursements to
PRs was USD 70 273 134, 73. Disbursement of the second
quarter was higher than the target due to the inclusion of
buffer disbursements to the following PRs; NACOSA USD
42,366,278.90; NDoH USD 91,747,794.95; and AFSA USD
27,906,855.83
For the period October to December 2019, disbursements to
PRs amounted to USD 27,000,826.61. Only one Principal
Recipient received its disbursement from the Global Fund
this quarter, Beyond Zero $ 27,000,826.61

Other achievements
Signing Ceremony
In the current grant period April 2019- March 2022; the
grant amount is USD 369,321.122.The signing of the
Global Fund Grant was on 25 April 2019; and all the
PRs participated at the event. There was a lot of buy-in
from external stakeholders who were part of the signing
event. The process of preparing for the grant was very
cumbersome considering the number preparatory
meetings held, besides the fact that the process yielded
better understanding of the grant.

Operational Performance and Excellence
Coordination (OPEC) and Site Visits to Principal
Recipients There we no OPEC meetings in quarter one

because programme implementation had not commenced
yet. Site visits did not happen as well. There were ten OPEC
meetings held in the second quarter of the period under
review. These meetings were for the Adolescent Girls and
Young Women (AGYW), Sex Work, People who inject drugs
(PWID), Community Response Systems (CRS), Advocacy,
Human Rights, Thuthuzela Care Centres (TCC), and Men
who have sex with men (MSM), Transgender (TG) and Cash
plus Care programmes. The purpose of the meetings was
to ensure the sharing of lessons learnt across PRs and the
identification of any bottlenecks and sharing them with
stakeholders implementing those programmes across the
country.
The outcome of the meeting was that there was need
for more coordination across all programmes and an
opportunity to engage with the government departments
that lead on certain programmes like Department of Basic
Education (DBE) on the in-school component.
There was one site visit conducted at an AGYW site
in Mpumalanga. The purpose of the site visit was to
obtain a better understanding of the AGYW programme
implementation on the ground. The site visit also provided
additional information on specific emerging issues during
the period under review, which enabled the CCM to make
appropriate decisions. The site visits also assist to verify
and validate information reported by the PR.
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Provincial Road Shows
The CCM Secretariat and SANAC Secretariat conducted
roadshows in all eight grant implementation provinces.
The purpose of the roadshows was to re-introduce PRs to
the Provincial AIDS Councils; meet the grant beneficiaries
as well as the potential implementers (SRs/Community
Based Organisations [CBOs]). Additional purposes of the
roadshows were as follows: to get buy in for GF programmes;
to make communities aware of GF programmes and to
ensure local based organizations got the opportunity to
engage and understand the existing opportunities and to
present the support that both SANAC and GF provide within
the provinces. Recommendations provided to SANAC from
the roadshows were as follows:

•

Work with the PCA to strengthen the DACs and LACs

•

Share with the PCA and DAC HoS the original cabinet
resolution established for the SANAC Trust

•

In the next NSP the Secretariat to include AIDS Councils
governance and coordination as a dedicated chapter
to include the following;

ü Develop a submission to the municipal councils to
regularise the Mayors as the chairpersons of the
AIDS Councils.

ü SANAC to share the Government Technical Advisory
Centre (GTAC) report with the PCA’s

ü Support the DAC and LACs to advocate for the

budget through the (District Implementation Plan)
DIP process

ü Conduct the roadshows on a regular basis,
preferably yearly or every grant cycle

Country Portfolio Review & Site Visits
There was a Country Portfolio Review (CPR) meeting during
the period under review. CPRs occur semi-annually where a
complete review of the grant performance occurs. The Unit
conducted a site visit to a PWID site in Port Elizabeth led by
NACOSA and TB HIV Care, the programme implementers.

Site Visits
The GF Unit postponed quarter four site visits to the next
reporting period in order to comply with the President’s call
for a nationwide lockdown. However, two site visits were
conducted to AGYW programmes in Mpumalanga to ensure
set up of safe spaces and to satellite spaces that were
established; another site visit was to the MSM programme,
a programme that was already in existence and continuing
from the previous grant.
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TABLE 12: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Strategic Objectives
• Foster dialogue and
build consensus so that
government, civil society,
private sector and
development partners
cooperate to achieve the
goals of the NSP
• Advise government on HIV
and AIDS, TB and STI policy
and strategy related matters
• Strengthen governance,
leadership and management
of the response to HIV, TB
and STI
• Strengthen the multisectoral response to HIV, TB
and STI as a contribution
to the overall social and
economic development of
South Africa including but
not limited to policy review,
programme management
and coordination, technical
assistance,
capacity building and
sectoral support
• Mobilise resources
domestically and
internationally to finance the
response to HIV, TB\ and
STIs
• Ensure the monitoring of
progress against the set
targets set in the NSP and
ensuring mid and end term
evaluations for the prevailing
NSP
• Create and strengthen
partnerships for an
expanded national response
in South Africa to HIV, TB
and STI among government
agencies, non-governmental
organisations (NGOs),
development partners, the
private sector and people
living with HIV, TB and STIs

Performance
indicator

Estimated
Actual
performance Performance
2019/2020

Approved Resource
Mobilisation Strategy
available on the
SANAC website
Number of Costing
TTT documents developed
Number of Innovative
NSP financing option
pilots implemented in
SA annually
Review of expenditure
on HIV, TB and STIs in
SA published on the
SANAC website
Report of annual
expenditure in SA
for key programmes
described in the NSP
2017-2022 published
on the SANAC website
Report on co-funding
raised annually from
the private sector
Report on the annual
expenditure in
Implementation of the
9 provincial implementation plans.

1

2

1

1

1

R10 million

1

Comments

2019/2020
0

Unit is not staffed

0

Costing TTT not formed yet

1

Social Impact Bond funded by
the Global Fund implemented
by the Medical Research Council - ongoing

0

Delayed, led by the Strategic
Information Unit, in this quarter,
the National AIDS Spending Assessment project development
has been initiated

0

Unit is not staffed – unable to
track the expenditure

0

Unit is not staffed – unable to
track the co-funding raised

0

Delayed, led by the Strategic
Information Unit, in this quarter,
the Provincial AIDS Spending
Assessment project development has been initiated

Number of GF CCM
Meetings held annually

4

3

The fourth CCM meeting was
scheduled for 26 March; however the national lock-down was
effected and had to be moved

Number of Oversight
Committee Reports
Developed annually.

4

4

Achieved

Amount Disbursed to
Principal Recipients

90 Million USD

USD 132 428
124,00

Disbursements exceeded the
90 million targeted due to
buffer disbursements given to
PRs and NDOH’s procurement
disbursement
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PROGRAMME 6: STAKEHOLDER MANAGEMENT
AND CAMPAIGNS (SMC)

Engagement sessions held with Leaders on SANAC
Priority Campaigns

Purpose:

•

The SMC Unit facilitated various engagements with
leaders on the Cheka Impilo campaign. For the
reporting period, the engagements focused on the
rural sector campaign wave. Engagements included
those with the National House of Traditional Leaders
as well as the Mpumalanga House of Traditional
Leaders, which led to the establishment and roll-out
of the Mpumalanga rural wall to wall Cheka Impilo
campaign waves.

•

This was an example of using the principle of leverage,
which led to a year-long programme of Cheka Impilo
campaign waves that capitalised on the budgets,
infrastructure and leadership of Traditional Leaders.
This in turn created an opportunity for the Secretariat
to engage with Amakosikazi as well as the wives
of traditional leaders in ensuring the achievement
of the NSP goal on leadership accountability and
responsibility.

This Unit provides administrative and management capacity
for the establishment and maintenance of platforms for
consensus building; amongst SANAC stakeholders toward
the achievement of the goals of the NSP.

Progress and Achievement on Strategic Deliverables
Private Sector Forum
During the period under review, work on the establishment of
the Private Sector Forum continued through engagements
between the SANAC Trust and the SABCOHA leadership on
the recommendations contained within the private sector
engagement strategy. The secretariat was very cognizant of
the prolonged timeframe required in the development of the
terms of reference for the Private Sector Forum, considering
the consultative process.
However, the groundwork
positioned the Secretariat to facilitate the establishment of
the private sector forum during the 2020/21 financial year.

Figure 6: Traditional leaders, religious leaders and leaders

Human Rights Technical Task Team (TTT)

in government and civil society attended the dialogue

Following the launch of the three year Human Rights

Strategy for a comprehensive response to human
rights-related barriers to HIV and TB services and
gender inequality in South Africa, just prior to the

opening of the South African AIDS Conference in June
2019, the unit convened two Human Rights Working Group
meetings during the period under review. The unit facilitated
the finalization of the full version of the Human Rights plan.
During the period under review, the SMC Unit finalised the
following;

•

Development of the Human Rights Toolkit;

Nerve Centre Reports

•

Development of the Terms of Reference for a
national web-based system to document human
rights violations.

Nerve Centres are information and data analysis multisector platforms for the coordination of SANAC approved
priority campaigns. The SMC Unit convened Nerve Centre
meetings to design and coordinate the rolling out of
SANAC priority campaign waves, at national level. The
SMC facilitated the establishment of Task teams, for each
campaign to ensure successful campaign implementation
by SANAC stakeholders.

The Unit convened a Human Rights TTT meeting on 6
February 2020, chaired by the Deputy Minister of Justice
and Constitutional Development. The meeting attendees
finalised the Terms of Reference and reached consensus on
the chairing of the TTT by the two co-chairpersons of the
Human Rights Working Group (Co-chairing) from the Sex
Worker as well as the LGBTI sectors The Unit provided a
status update on the implementation of the Human Rights
Plan to the TTT.

Task Teams include:

•

Programme and content

•

Logistics

SANAC Program Review Committee (PRC)

•

Service delivery

Two PRC meetings took place in the period under review.
PRC meetings took place on 5 June 2019; and 18 November
2019.

•

Communications

•

Social mobilization

•

Security

•

Resource mobilization

During the PRC meetings, the SMC Unit presented key
strategic documents at the Plenary, including:

• Mid-Terms Review results
• Three-year National Human Rights strategy in response
to human rights and gender-related barriers to HIV and
TB services

• The National Sex Workers Plan
• World AIDS Day 2019
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To ensure the effective coordination of some campaigns,
these meetings took place at the provincial level. Provincial
Nerve Centre meetings ensured active participation and
ownership in the planning and organization of national
priority campaigns by local provincial stakeholders.
Additionally, Provincial stakeholders actively participated in
the build-up activities to various national campaigns.

The SMC Unit facilitated the implementation of the following
two campaigns:

•

The Family Health Days in partnership with Rotarians,
held around Burgersfort in Limpopo;

•

World AIDS day 2019, held in the North West Province
and

Nerve Centre Guide
The Secretariat consulted, finalized and published the
Cheka Impilo Nerve Centre Guide during the reporting
period. The Guide provides managers with information on
the coordination of multi-sector campaign meetings as well
as emphasizing the importance of regular communication
to people on key campaign indicators. Government
departments such as Social Development, Higher Health
and Health successfully implemented some of the principles
in the Nerve Centre Guide in managing the COVID-19
pandemic. The Nerve Centre methodology was also
presented during the South African AIDS Conference in June
2019.

•

Need of support from all SANAC sectors. Unfortunately,
there is a challenge of inadequate resources to support
such initiatives

•

The Labour sector was involved in various activations,
around mining towns of Gauteng and the North West.
The Secretariat also supported the Chaka Impilo wave
led by the labour sector during the week long NEHAWU
Games in Kwa-Zulu Natal.

•

The Sex Workers sector successfully led dialogues in
Limpopo and the North West Provinces, in partnership
with various government departments, including the
South African Police Services. Engagements at these
dialogues included highlighting the barriers which sex
workers face in accessing services as well as various
human rights abuses they suffer in the hands of law
enforcement officers.

•

World AIDS day held in the North West province,
provided a platform for many SANAC Civil Society
Sectors to contribute to the Cheka Impilo campaign.
During the build up to the national event, the Youth
Sector, Sports, Arts and Entertainment Sector as well
as the Faith based Sector, were conspicuous by the
high levels of activities. The Youth Sector organized a
very well run event called the Colour My HIV Fun run.
This was a campaign wave by the youth, for the youth
and sensitizing the youth to live healthy lifestyles and
to access the services provided under the Cheka Impilo
package of services

Campaign waves
Work on the coordination of the Cheka Impilo campaign
continued during the reporting period through the
mobilisation of more sectors funded by the grant received
from the National Lotteries Commission.
Financial
resources served as best practices, which demonstrated the
contribution and capability of Civil Society Sectors towards
the response to the epidemic. Campaign wave highlights
supported by the Secretariat during the reporting period
included amongst others:

•

Joint collaborative rural sector campaign waves led
by the Faith-based and Traditional leaders Sectors.
Activations by these two sectors took place in Mopani
District in Limpopo, Vhembe district in Limpopo and
various districts in Mpumalanga Province.

•

LGBQTI+ Sector led campaign wave activations in the
North West, Mdantsane in the Eastern Cape, Gauteng
and Northern Cape provinces. Service delivery data
from these activations by the LGBQTI+ sector, is
available for the Cheka Impilo Campaign.

•

The Men’s sector led various activations with a highlight
on the activation held in Parliament to launch the
rolling out of district activations. The Men’s sector took
full advantage of the partnership with the Department
of Social development to expand their activations to
almost every corner of South Africa.

•

The Disability Sector was involved in various activations
including the Wheelchair Challenge (OCC) Race and
the fifth Annual Manguzi Gijima held in the remote rural
town of Manguzi, Kwa-Zulu Natal. This event focussed
on the most vulnerable members of the society in
Figure 8: Youth Colour my HIV Fun Run

Figure 7: An awareness event with People living with
disabilities in Manguzi

•

Traditional Health Practitioners campaign wave lead
activations in the Eastern Cape and Limpopo Provinces

•

All the SANAC sectors participated in the Cheka Impilo
human rights march, held through the busy streets of
Durban just before the official launch of the Human
Rights Plan and the start of the AIDS Conference. The
march was led by the Premier, Ministers and leaders
of various civil society sectors. This march had the
objective of raising awareness on issues of stigma as
well as on the right to quality health services for free as
part of the Cheka Impilo campaign.
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Civil Society Forum (CSF)
The Civil Society Forum (CSF) initiated a process to refine
its mandate and set up a clear governance framework to
eliminate overlap within the SANAC structure, overcome
ambiguity of roles and responsibilities, as well as to improve
coordination and access to resources for Civil Society (CS)
organisations that participate in SANAC, ensuring selfgovernance and coordination. A CS Lekgotla held from 29
– 30 August 2019 focused on presentations and discussions
on the nature and form of CSF Self-Governance. Attendance
of the SANAC CSF Lekgotla was as follows: 75 Civil Society
Leaders from 18 sectors and 61 leaders from Provincial
CSF. The outcome of the Lekgotla was a draft declaration
on self-governance.

The Unit convened a three-day long meeting (15-17 January
2020) attended by the SANAC Civil Society Coordinating
Committee, the CEO of the SANAC Trust and Executive
Managers. During the meeting, there was consensus on the
following issues: the utilization of expertise of Secretariat
by the CSF, ways in which to improve coordination and
communication between CS, Trust and Secretariat, the
finalization of the CSF Strategy, inclusive of a project plan and
timelines and the standardization of lines of communication.
The eighteen SANAC Civil Society Forum sectors, the
provincial Civil Society Fora and its constituencies developed
the SANAC CSF Strategy 2019-2022, to ensure that civil
society continues to play its traditional roles in advocacy,
activism, social mobilisation, but more so continues with
providing world-class prevention and treatment services.

Special CSF Sector Leaders Meeting in response to
the Coronavirus pandemic
The CSF Sector Leaders held a special meeting on the
23rd March 2020 to discuss their contribution to the
containment of the Coronavirus and to identify measures
to stop community local infections through sector actions,
after the President’s announcement of a 21-day long
lock down, from 26 March 2020. CSF developed a Civil
Society Forum Strategy on Advocacy, Social Mobilisation
& Communications for Coronavirus, including the roles and
responsibilities for Sectors and Provinces.

Human rights strategy
With the on-going support of the Global Fund, SANAC
developed a comprehensive THREE-YEAR NATIONAL
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN FOR A COMPREHENSIVE
RESPONSE TO HUMAN RIGHTS-RELATED BARRIERS
TO HIV AND TB SERVICES AND GENDER INEQUALITY IN
SOUTH AFRICA, launched just prior to the official opening
of the South African AIDS Conference in June 2019 in Gugu
Dlamini Park. The 3-year plan aims to strengthen HIV, TB,
human rights and gender equality.

One of the highlights was the official approval of the
Plan at the SANAC Plenary on the 23 November 2019,
which included a recommendation that the human rights
programmes should be mainstreamed through the SANAC

governance structures – government, civil society as well
as the private sector.
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An International Human Rights Experts meeting on the
“Implementation Support to Scale up National Programmes
to Remove Human Rights-Related Barriers to HIV, TB and
Malaria Services”, co-hosted by the SANAC Trust and the
Global Fund, preceded the launch of the above-cited launch
of the Human Rights Strategy.

Documented Human Rights violations
The SMC undertook the development of the national human
rights web-based platform in two phases. Phase 1 was the
mapping of existing manual and digital tools employed by
other organisations to collect information on human rights
abuses. The development of the human rights violations
data collection tool, forms part of the next reporting period.

Other strategic deliverables
World TB Day planning
The Unit coordinated the planning of the World Tuberculosis
(TB) Day scheduled to take place in KwaMhlushwa Stadium,
Ehlanzeni District Municipality, in the Mpumalanga Province.
Highlights of the coordination include the development of
the concept document and a consensus on World TB Day
theme “Cheka Impilo: It’s Time to End TB”.

The Unit coordinated the planning of several build-up
activities some of which did not take place due to the
lock-down, which eventually led to the cancellation of the
commemoration of the World TB day. Some of the build-up
activities, which took place, were as follows: the sensitisation
workshop for Traditional Health Practitioners on 10-13
February 2020 and a meeting with Faith Leaders on 24-25
February 2020.

Global Partnership for Action to Eliminate All Forms
of HIV-Related Stigma and Discrimination
One of the outcomes of the 41st meeting of the UNAIDS
Programme Coordinating Board (PCB), was a consensus to
establish a Global Partnership For Action To Eliminate All
Forms Of HIV-Related Stigma and Discrimination. The aim is
to catalyse, accelerate and translate commitments made by
Governments to end HIV-related stigma and discrimination
into measureable policy change and programmatic
interventions. The UNAIDS invited South Africa to join the
partnership. A meeting held with the UN and PLHIV sector
on the 12 February 2020 concluded that SANAC would lead
and coordinate the partnership.

Participation at the South African AIDS Conference
The Stakeholder Management and Campaigns Unit
presented a session during the South African AIDS
Conference in June 2019. The session title was “Resilient
Sustainable Systems for Health. The session focused on the
function of the Nerve Centres and launch of the guidelines”.

TABLE 13: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Strategic Objectives

• Strengthen decision
making among
stakeholders
• Coordination of civil
society sector

Performance indicator

Estimated
Actual
performance Performance
2019/2020
2019/2020

Established private sector
forum by Quarter 4

1

0

Number of Human Rights
Technical Task Team
meetings held annually

2

2

Minutes of SANAC PCR
Meeting recommendations
to plenary

2

2

Number of engagement
sessions held with leaders
on SANAC priority
campaigns

5

9

Number of Nerve Centre
Reports Approved

4

4

Number of campaign waves
Supported

4

41

Number of Civil Society
Forum Meetings

4

4

Approved Strategy on
Human Rights

1

1

Documented Human Rights
violations report developed

1

0

PROGRAMME 7: TECHNICAL SUPPORT UNIT

•

Provision of Technical Support for Key Population
programs through improved KP programmes
implementation.

•

The improvement of programmatic efficiencies
achievable through supporting the strengthening
of Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E) systems,

•

Identification and correction of implementation
gaps, and development of innovative systems to
improve the quality and delivery of programmes
delivered by KP partners.

Provision of technical assistance
The TSU led to completion the development of the GF
Adolescent Girls and Young Women (AGYW) Program
description during the first year of grant implementation.
The unit continued to provide technical support to the
implementation of GF programmes through workshops and
meetings, including but not limited to the following:

Delayed due consultative
processes

The HIV Self Screening capacity building workshop
with the PRs and Sub Recipients (SRs) (21 January
2020), where attendees were trained on the
procurement of self-testing kits, the process of
data collection and reporting. This allowed the PRs
to commence implementation of the programme in
March 2020.

•

Coordination of the Biometric Steering Committee
Meetings. The TSU took over the process of chairing
the implementation of the biometrics system for
the AGYW programme. Prior to the takeover,
the implementation of the project was slow and
hindered by many obstacles arising out of having a
single lead PR for the project.

•

TSU provided oversight to the project through
monthly meetings with the service provider and
the three PRs. The backlog caused by the poor
capturing by PRs and system glitches was 90%
complete for Year 1.

•

PrEP workshop held in February 2020, where
the PRs and SRs had an opportunity to address
implementation
challenges
regarding
the
implementation of this programme and formulate
strategies to improve its rollout and uptake.

•

Gender Based Violence (GBV) training for first
responders with assistance from the World Health
Organisation (WHO). PRs and SR master trainers
received training to cascade the training to their

Strategic Deliverables:
The TSU has three strategic deliverables:

Delayed employment of
the technical lead

•

Purpose of Unit:
The Technical Support Unit (TSU) provides leadership and
guidance in the design, implementation and evaluation of
technically sound, cost-effective and practical approaches
to the implementation of HIV/TB/STI prevention programs
in Key Populations (KP) and Vulnerable Populations (VP).
TSU team works with all stakeholders in the area of KPs,
the GF CCM oversight committee (OC) and other relevant
technical working groups (TWG) as technical advisors on the
KPs.

Comments

first responders to identify GBV issues with

beneficiaries and refer them appropriately. The TSU
was in the process of developing plans to further
cascade the GBV training to clinicians.
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•

The Men who have sex with men (MSM) learning
workshop hosted in February 2020, for familiarizing
PRs with the Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs)
and guidance provided on the implementation of
programme.

Role of the TSU in the CCM
The unit continued to coordinate the quarterly reporting
meetings with PRs to monitor programmatic performance
and to compile reports for presentation at the CCM
oversight meetings. The TSU provided assistance at the
CCM meetings on technical matters and other functions
as delegated by the CCM committee. The TSU further
supported other engagements such as conducting the
AGYW beneficiary validation meetings throughout the
implementation districts.

Programme descriptions developed
The TSU supported the development of the AGYW Program
description, which is a key document providing structure on
the effective implementation of the program. The document
addresses the following:

•

Increasing district-level saturation of programmes
to levels that will result in epidemic control of the
population.

•

Improving the quality of care by augmenting
and layering packages along the full [90-90-90]
cascade.

•

Maximizing alignment to government and partner
investments.

The TSU gave feedback to the PRs for finalization of the
process.

Program Implementation meetings and Workshops
In the reporting period under review, the TSU supported
several implementation meetings, which include the
following:

Mid-term review of the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual,
Transgender, and Intersex (LGBTI) Plan
SANAC appointed Health Focus to conduct the Mid-term
review (MTR) of the LGBTI Plan. Health Focus conducted
desktop literature reviews as well as key informant interviews
with various stakeholders and presented progress to the
National Technical Working Group. The next steps include
completing provincial data validation workshops in four
provinces, completing mapping tool indicating areas of
services implementation, location, and contact details of
service providers. The final MTR Report is due in the next
reporting period.

Biometric Steering Committee
The meetings occurred monthly to address the biometric
system challenges, successes and risks as well as
provide reports on analytics and service mapping. The
meetings discussed implementation challenges and the
implementation of corrective actions.

Economic Strengthening Livelihoods
The TSU held one meeting to finalise the appointment of
service providers of the three PRs. Contractual agreements
were signed with three service providers through NACOSA
namely Beulah Africa Foundation, MBAT, Ikhumiseng
Consulting to support the implementation of the program.
The TSU established task teams to write the guidelines
based on set criteria.

Human Rights (HR) Violations Monitoring Systems for
Key Populations in SA
The TSU convened a meeting following discussions between
various donors and partners on key populations HR
Violations Monitoring Systems in use in South Africa. SANAC
Secretariat intends to develop a national HR violations data
warehouse to collate, report and analyze HR data to inform
decision-making and policy.

AGYW Process Evaluation
The initial meeting was an introductory overview of the
planned external process evaluation of the combination of
HIV prevention intervention for AGYW aged 15 to 24 years
implemented during the Global Fund Grant period 2019
to 2022. The service provider, Medical Research Council
(MRC) presented their proposed approach to the proposed
evaluation. The other meeting was a steering committee
meeting, chaired by TSU that guided the development of
the final research proposal.

Global Fund Request for Funding (RFF) Steering
Committee
TSU participated in two meetings to plan and develop the
RFF process and appointment of consultants. The initial
meeting was to elect members of the RFF committee and
approve its ToRs, and the second meeting was to approve
the RFF development roadmap.

Covid-19 proposal drafting and coordination with PRs
The TSU held meetings with PRs and other stakeholders to
develop two concept proposals for GF funding of COVID-19
activities using grant flexibilities. The meeting attendees
approved the proposals implemented by the PRs during the
reporting period.

OPEC
The TSU convened six meetings to track performance and
expenditure patterns of the GF PRs. The Unit participated
in the OPEC meetings where participants interrogated
data and performance of the implementers and provided
assistance following the shortcomings identified. The unit
also provided support in the compilation of reports for the
SANAC CCM and its OC.

OPEC workshops
Attendees of OPEC meetings held in the last quarter of
2019/2020 observed that Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP)
uptake was low across the PR’s. GF recommended weekly
monitoring meetings as an intervention strategy to improve

poor performance. OPEC members attended weekly
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meetings for PrEP presentations and interrogations thereafter. The agenda also included PrEP drug availability and HIV
self-screening (HIVSS).
Data collection and reporting
Biometric system, which captures AGYW patient-level data for all the PR’s and was up and running during the period under
review although PR’s were still busy with data back-capturing.

•

•
•
•

Key and Vulnerable Populations Analytics Platform (KVAP), which is utilised for analysing AGYW for the PR’s and
producing dashboards. The system has three objectives:

o

Provide Global Fund PRs with high-resolution program analytics for improved reporting and monitoring
of program performance;

o

Triangulate key data sources such as programmatic data, targets, and finance data for a broader
context of program efficacy; and,

o

Cohort tracking for improved program monitoring.

Standardised Ms Excel template for reporting HIV Self-Screening (HIVSS) data was shared with the PR’s
Weekly PrEP reporting template was developed and implemented across the three PR’s
OC reporting templates were piloted for quarter three report and the TSU anticipates feedback from GF in the
next reporting period.

AGYW M&E framework
The framework which covers the supported program indicators is available. Program revisions occur as program implementation
takes place through interventions by PRs.

Established the AGYW Steering committee
The steering committee had an inception meeting during the period under review.

Establishment of the Sustainability TWG
There are 30 members from the government departments, Implementing partners and Donors, in the TWG.

TABLE 14: PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Strategic Objective
Provision of Technical
Support for Key
Population programs
through improved
KP programmes
implementation.

Estimated
performance
2019/2020

Actual
Performance
2019/2020

Number of programme
description documents
aligned to national
guidelines.

1

1

Number of monitoring
meetings held

2

2

Performance
indicator

Number of reporting
tools/ systems
developed

Provide Technical
Number of stakeholder
Support for TB programs meetings held
through conducting
Quality Improvement and
Assurance interventions.

0

0

6

2

Comments

Reporting tools developed
for the GF modules to allow
for standardized reporting
by PRs.
Reporting tool also
developed for the Oversight
committee
TB performance monitoring
meetings held with National
Department of Health
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PART C

Governance
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Roles and responsibilities of the Board of
Trustees
The roles and responsibilities of the Trustees are in the
Trust Deed.

Trust Deed
TheTrust is governed by theTrust Property ControlAct 57
of 1988 and theTrust Deed that guides how theTrust must
be governed.
The Trust was established in 2002. The Trust Deed
was amended during 2012 and the new Trust Deed
was approved by the Trustees, the Deputy President
and Minister of Health in the first quarter of 2013. In
May 2013, the Trust Deed was also approved by the
Minister of Finance and the SARS Commissioner. The
Deed - as well as the documents relating to the change
of Trustees - has been registered with the Master of the
High Court.

Composition of the Board of Trustees

TABLE 15: COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Name

Designation (in terms
of SANAC Trust’s Board
structure)

Date
appointed

Mr Abba Omar

Chairperson of the Trust

24 October 2017

Commissioner Sheila Mbele-Khama

Trustee

29 January 2016

Mr Mluleki Zazini

Trustee

29 January 2016

Dr Yogan Pillay

Trustee

29 January 2016

Prof Koleka Mlisana

Trustee

29 January 2016

Adv Noluthando Orleyn

Trustee

29 January 2016

Ms Esther Letlape

Trustee

24 October 2017

Ms Andile Mthombeni

Trustee

24 October 2017

Ms Thembelihle Mbatha

Trustee

04 April 2019

Mr B Ramokhele

Trustee

04 April 2019

Mr S Mbele

Trustee

04 April 2019

Date resigned/
term ended
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RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk management entails the identification of key risks, risk evaluation and risk-mitigating strategies. Risks are evaluated based
on their inherency and the effectiveness of mitigation controls. Any gap between the accepted level of risk and the residual
risk after mitigating strategies is investigated and additional controls and procedures implemented to bring all risk to an
acceptable level.

The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the risk management procedures of the Trust and its findings are
outlined in the report of the Audit and Risk Committee below.

INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES
The purpose of the Internal Audit is to review the functioning of internal controls. It reports to the CEO and the Audit and Risk
Committee on all matters of internal control and related challenges.
NEXIA-SAB&T continued its appointment as internalauditor throughout the year and reported to the Audit and Risk Committee.

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
A comprehensive fraud and corruption policy has been developed and implemented. No issues were identified during the year.

MINIMISING CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
All staff have been advised of the need to declare any conflicts of interest in any procurement in which they may be involved. All
staff have signed declarations of interest as required by the human resourcespolicy.
To register on the supplier database, all suppliers are required to disclose any conflicts of interest.

CODE OFCONDUCT
A code of conduct has been developed and implemented. All new staff are made aware of the code and commit to it in their
contract of employment.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES
The SANAC Trust complies with health and safety laws and regulations.

Report of the Audit and Risk Committee for the year end 31 March 2020
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020
The Audit and Risk Committee (‘the Committee’) is
pleased to present its report for the financial period
ended 31 March 2020.

Functions of the Audit and Risk Committee
The Committee is a sub–committee of the Board of
Trustees. It assists the Board of Trustees through
advising and making submissions on financial reporting,
oversight of the risk management process and internal
financial controls, external and internal audit functions
and statutory compliance of the SANAC Trust.

Composition and Meetings
At 31 March 2020, the Committee consisted of four
independent non-executive members, three of which are
Trustees. During the period under review the Committee
was chaired by Ms Thembelihle Mbatha who has since
post year end resigned from the Board of trustees and
replaced by Mr Bonolo Ramokhele as chairperson of
the committee. The Audit and Risk Committee Terms of
Reference (“the TORs”) requires the Committee to hold at
least four meetings in a financial year. During the financial
period ended 31 March 2020 the Committee held four
meetings on the following dates:
• 27 May 2019

Internal financial control
The system of controls within the SANAC Trust are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets
are safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital
are properly managed. An outsourced internal audit
function provides the Committee and management with
assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and
effective.
The internal auditors rated the SANAC Trust’s overall
performance of the audited activities completed at
March 2020 as “Some improvement needed”, with no
significant weaknesses identified. The Committee notes
management’s commitment to address the reported
matters and will monitor their progress in resolving these
issues on a regular basis.
Evaluation of the annual financial statements and external
audit
Based on processes followed and assurance received,
nothing has come to the Committee’s attention regarding:
•

Limitations in the external auditor’s independence; or

•

Complaints relating to the accounting practices and
internal audit of the SANAC Trust, the content or
auditing of its financial statements, the internal
financial controls of SANAC Trust, and any other
related matters.

• 03 September 2019
• 22 November 2019
• 25 February 2020
The Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer,
Senior Manager: Compliance and Risk, the Trust
Secretary attend meetings of the Committee on behalf of
Management. Representatives of the external and internal
auditors attend Committee meetings by invitation. The
internal and external auditors have unrestricted access to
the Committee.

Regulatory compliance
The Committee is not aware of any matters of noncompliance relating to any applicable legal and regulatory
responsibilities.

Appreciation
We wish to acknowledge the dedication and hard work
performed by management and other officials. We are
grateful and appreciative of their support and consistent
value adding contributions.

Duties
The Committee has adopted formal terms of reference,
which are reviewed regularly. The Committee operates
in accordance with the terms of reference and has
executed its duties during the period, including making
several submissions and recommendations to the Board
of Trustees on matters relating to relevant audit and risk
matters.

Oversight of risk management
The Committee received assurance from management
that the processes and procedures followed in terms of
acceptable risk management procedures are adequate
to ensure that financial risks are identified and monitored.

Statement by a member of the audit committee
The Committee has complied with legal, regulatory and
other responsibilities assigned to it by the Board of
Trustees. In making these assessments, we have obtained
feedback from management, external and internal audit.
Based on processes and assurance obtained, on behalf
of the audit committee as at 31 March 2020, I recommend
the annual financial statements to the Board of Trustees
for approval.

For and on behalf of the Audit and Risk Committee

Mr Bonolo Ramokhele
(Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee)
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PART D

Human Resources
Management
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Programme

All programmes

Total
expenditure
(R’000)

Personnel
expenditure
(R’000)

R 154,217

Personnel
expenditure
as % of total
expenditure

No. of
employees

22%

48

R 34,303

Average
personnel
cost per
employee
(R’000)
R 0.7

Total expenditure for programme divided by personnel expenditure.

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES
The approved human personnel of the Trust during this reporting period was 10. At the end of this reporting period, the Trust
had 46 full- time employees and 16 vacancies as per the table below.

TABLE 16: EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES PER PROGRAMME
2019/2020
number of
employees

2019/2020
approved
posts

2019/2020
vacancies
filled

2019/2020
vacancies

Communication

2

1

1

0

Financial Services and Administration

14

1

1

2

Strategic Information

11

0

0

2

NSP Implementation

5

0

0

1

Human Resources

2

1

1

0

Resource Mobilisation and Donor Coordination

1

0

0

3

CEO’s Office

3

0

0

0

Stakeholder Management and Campaigns

6

3

3

3

Technical Support

4

4

4

5

48

10

10

16

Unit

Total

61
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EQUITY (equity targets will
be set in the next reporting
period)
The table below illustrates the
human resource equity of the
Trust. Based on its size, the Trust
does not have to comply with
broad- based black economic
empowerment codes, but its
turnover exceeds R5 million, which
requires the Trust to develop and
identify equity targets.

TABLE 17: EQUITY
African

Coloured

Indian/Asian

White

Level
Male

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

Top management

3

2

0

0

0

0

0

1

Senior management

2

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

Professional qualified

5

9

0

0

2

0

0

2

Skilled

1

6

0

0

0

0

0

0

Semi-skilled

0

4

0

0

1

0

0

0

Unskilled

0

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

11

24

0

0

3

0

0

3

Total

Disabled staff
The Trust does not have any persons with disabilities in its employ.
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GENERAL INFORMATION
Country of incorporation and domicile

South Africa

Principal activities of the Trust			

The South African National Aids Council Trust supports 		
the implementation of the National Strategic Plan for 		
HIV,TB and STI’s and promote and secure nationally 		
in South Africa the provision of related educational, 		
prevention, care and treatment programmes and to 		
promote or advocate for the human rights of persons 		
infected with or affected by HIV, TB and STI’s; and 			
research in relation to these diseases and their impact.

							
							
							
							
							
							
							

Trustees						Ms S Khama
							Prof K Mlisana
							Ms T Orleyn
							Dr Y Pillay
							Mr M Zazini
							Mr Y Abba Omar
							Ms FE Letlape
							Ms AJ Mthombeni
							Ms T Mbatha		Appointed Apr 2019
							Mr B Ramokhele		Appointed Apr 2019
							Mr S Mbele		Appointed Apr 2019

Registered office					2nd Floor, Block E, Hatfield Gardens
							333 Grosvenor Street
							Pretoria 0028

Postal address

				P.O. Box 13912

							

Hatfield 0028

Bank							ABSA Bank Limited
Trust registration number				IT 6481/02
Level of assurance

				These annual financial statements have been audited

							

in compliance with the applicable requirements of the

							Trust Deed.

Preparer						The annual financial statements were independently compiled
							by: Green Dot Consulting
							External Reporting Professional

Issued 						27 October 2020
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TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND APPROVAL
The trustees are required in terms of the Trust Deed to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the
content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their
responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the SANAC Trust as at the
end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual
financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are
based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements
and estimates.
The trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the Trust and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the trustees to meet
these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the Trust and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Trust’s
business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in
the Trust is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Trust. While operating risk
cannot be fully eliminated, the Trust endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems
and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The trustees are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual
financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The board of Trustees have reviewed the 2020/21 budget as well as the Mid Term Expenditure Funding proposal for a 3 year
period 2020/21 – 2022/23 and are satisfied that the organisation has sufficient income to cover the expenses and is thus a
going concern and, in light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Trust has or had access
to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the Trust’s annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements have been examined by the Trust’s external auditors and their report is presented on pages
4 to 5.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 6 to 35, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the board on 27 October 2020 and were signed on their behalf by:
Approval of financial statements

Chairperson Board of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Trustee of South African National Aids Council
Trust
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of South African
National Aids Council Trust set out on pages 6 to 33, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March
2020, and the statement of surplus or deficit and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of South African
National Aids Council Trust as at 31 March 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Trust Deed.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the trust in accordance with the sections 290 and 291 of the Independent
Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts
1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’
Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other
independence requirements applicable to performing audits
of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities, as applicable, in accordance
with the IRBA Codes and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding
sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) respectively. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Other Information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
document titled “South African National Aids Council Trust
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March
2020”, which includes as required by the Trust Deed, and the
supplementary information set out on pages 34 to 35. The
other information does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express an audit opinion or
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the Trustees for the Financial
Statements
The trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Trust Deed, and for such internal control
as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the
trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the trust’s
internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the trustees.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially
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• Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the trust’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the trust to cease to continue as a
going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
•3 We communicate with the trustees regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette
Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that
Turning Point Consulting Southern Africa Inc. have been the
auditors of South African National Aids Council Trust for 2
years.
Turning Point Consulting Southern Africa Inc.

Per: FB Lavangee
Director / Partner
Chartered Accountant (SA)
19 October 2020
Suite 9
West Riding Office
50 West Riding Row
Sherwood
Durban
2015/011380/21
Practice No. 945126

70

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

71

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Statement of Comprehensive Income

72

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES

73

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

74

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below.
1.1 Basis of preparation
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with, and in compliance with,
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the requirements of the Trust Deed and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing these annual financial
statements and the Trust Deed of South Africa, as amended.
These annual financial statements comply with the requirements of the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the
Accounting Practices Committee and the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council.
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies which follow and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in Rands, which
is the SANAC Trust functional currency.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Useful lives and residual values
The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are assessed annually and are dependent
on the condition of the assets. Management applies judgement in assessing the condition of the assets. The residual values
are estimated to be zero as the SANAC Trust will be utilising these assets over their entire economic life. Refer to note 1.3 for
the accounting policies on estimated useful lives for property, plant and equipment and note 1.4 for intangible assets.
Fair value determination of donated assets
In determining the fair value of donated property, plant and equipment assets received during the 2018/19 financial period,
various inputs were considered namely, the conditional assessment of the asset, the carrying value of the asset at date of
donations and market comparatives prices.
1.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the Trust holds for its own use and which are expected to be used
for more than one year.
An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Trust, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly attributable
to the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifying assets.
Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant and equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Trust
and the cost can be measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the year in which they are
incurred.
Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is ready for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged
to write off the asset’s carrying amount over its estimated useful life to its estimated residual value, using a method that
best reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the Trust. Leased assets are depreciated
in a consistent manner over the shorter of their expected useful lives and the lease term. Depreciation is not charged to an
asset if its estimated residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier
of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or derecognised.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item					Depreciation method		Average useful life
Furniture and office equipment		
IT equipment				
Leasehold improvements			

Straight line			
Straight line			
Straight line			

5-15 years
5-15 years
Over the remaining lease period
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The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another
asset.
Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired.
When the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with
the recoverable amount.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and
equipment is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the item.
1.4 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Trust; and
• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
• it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
• there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
• there is an ability to use or sell it.
• it will generate probable future economic benefits.
• there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.
• the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation is not provided for these
intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be
impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised
over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised
as intangible assets.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item							Useful life
Focus For Impact Platform development costs		

Indefinite

Trademark						20 years
Website development costs				

3 years

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial
recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial assets designated as at fair
value through surplus or deficit, which shall not be classified out of the fair value through surplus or deficit category.
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Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Trust becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.
The Trust classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets.
For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the initial
measurement of the instrument.
Transaction costs on financial instruments at fair value through surplus or deficit are recognised in profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement
Financial instruments at fair value through surplus or deficit are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value being included in surplus or deficit for the period.
Net gains or losses on the financial instruments at fair value through surplus or deficit exclude dividends and interest.
Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated
impairment losses.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Trust has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the Trust establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and
option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.
Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date the Trust assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through surplus or deficit, to
determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been impaired.
For amounts due to the Trust, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment.
Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.
Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial
asset at the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit.
Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in surplus
or deficit within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses.
Financial instruments designated as at fair value through surplus or deficit
These include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition after transaction date.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling to realise a return.
Receivables and contract assets
Accounts receivable are measured at initial recognition at cost, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in statement
of comprehensive income when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the
debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
(more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the account receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the deficit is
recognised in statement of comprehensive income within project expenses. When an account receivable is uncollectable, it is
written off against the allowance account for accounts receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
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are credited against project expenses in statement of comprehensive income
A contract asset is recognized when deliverable milestones have been met for which funds are rightly due to SANAC Trust
according to the contract however the donor has not been invoiced at the financial reporting period.
Payables
Trade payables are initially measured at cost, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
The Trust recognises in payables an amount for accruals where an estimate is made of the amounts due for goods or
services that have been received or supplied, but an invoice or formal request for payment may not been received at the
reporting date.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
1.6 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset.
This liability is not discounted.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.
Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of
the lease term.
1.7 Impairment of assets
The Trust assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the Trust estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately
in surplus or deficit. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
The Trust assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior
periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.
The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than
goodwill is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as
a revaluation increase.
1.8 Reserves
Reserves are comprised of the initial donation in the Trust after surplus or deficit for each financial year.
1.9 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid
vacation leave and sick leave), are recognised in the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
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The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
1.10 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
• the Trust has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date, discounted to present value where the time value of money is expected to be material. Provisions are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjuste to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement shall be recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the
entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement shall be treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement shall not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.
If the Trust has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract shall be recognised and measured as a
provision.
Contingent assets are disclosed where the Trust has a possible inflow of resources, but the inflow did not meet the
recognition criteria of an asset.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed where a liability is subject to an uncertain event or the outflow is only assessed to be
possible.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities have been based on the best estimate available at the time of preparing the
financial statements.
1.11 Related party transactions
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting Trust and a related
party. Related party transactions are recorded in the notes to the financial statements when the transaction is not at arm’s
length. Key management personnel are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Trust. The number of individuals and their full compensation is recorded in the notes to the
financial statements.
1.12 Income
The SANAC Trust recognises income outside the scope of IFRS 15 which is accounted for under IAS 20 - Government
Grants reported as income for state appropriations – subsidies and grants.
Government grants
Non-designated grants
Non-designated grants are funds for which no restrictions are placed by the donor besides general support to the SANAC
Trust’s objectives or mandate. The funds are not allocated for a specific project however for general operational support to
SANAC Trust in order for the Trust to meet the National Strategic Plan (NSP) objectives.
Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with related costs that they are
intended to compensate. Income will be deferred for any unutilised funds as at the reporting period.
Designated programme grants
Designated grants are funds where the use is restricted by the donor for specific projects within SANAC Trust.
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that:
• the SANAC Trust will comply with the conditions attaching to them; and
• the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs that they
are intended to compensate.
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A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the SANAC Trust with no future related costs is recognised as income of the period
in which it becomes receivable.
Other Grants
Grants that are received from non-government institutions are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match
them with the related costs that they are intended to compensate. Income will be deferred for any unutilised funds as at the
reporting period.
Donations in kind (Designated and non-designated)
Donations in kind (asset or service) are recognised at fair value on the date of receipt.
Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
1.13 Revenue
The SANAC Trust adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”) with a date of initial application of 31
March 2018. As a result, the SANAC Trust changed its accounting policies relating to these financial reporting processes as
detailed below.
During the 2019 financial year, the SANAC Trust elected not to restate comparative information and recorded the
cumulative effect of initially applying the new standards as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at the date of
initial application. Therefore, the comparative information was not restated and was reported under the previous relevant
accounting policies.
The impact of adopting IFRS 15 had an immaterial impact on the financial information presented in the annual financial
statements as the SANAC Trust had previously recognised revenue as and when it satisfied its performance obligations
towards its customers.
Revenue under IFRS 15
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected
on behalf of third parties. The SANAC Trust recognises revenue when it transfers control over a product or service to a
customer.
At the inception of a contract with a customer, the SANAC Trust assesses the goods or services promised in the
contract and identifies as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the customer either a good or service (or
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct; or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and
have the same pattern of transfer to the customer.
Revenue is recognised when the performance obligation relating to each specific contract has been satisfied. Performance
obligations are satisfied either at a point in time or over time.
Where performance obligations are satisfied over time, the SANAC Trust adopts an input method based on the costs
incurred to date as a measure of the percentage of completion of the contract. Given the nature of the contracts completed
over time, this method provides a realistic depiction of the transfer of goods and services for performance obligations
satisfied over time.
When the SANAC Trust performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer transfers any
consideration, the amount receivable is disclosed separately as a contract asset. Similarly, if a customer transfers any
consideration before the SANAC Trust transfers any corresponding goods or services, the amount received is disclosed
separately as a contract liability.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. New Standards and Interpretations
2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
The Trust did not adopt any new standard or interpretation during the current year
The Trust has not chosen to adopt the following standards and interpretations:
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material
In October 2018, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the definition of ‘material’ across the standards and to clarify certain
aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, ’Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.
The amendments to the definition of material is not expected to have a significant impact on the Trust’s Financial
statements.
2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective
The Trust has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretation, which have been published and are
mandatory for the Trust’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, however exemptions within the standard for
the current year lease have been applied.
IFRS 16 - Leases
Effective date for the Trust: 01 April 2020
Expected impact:
IFRS 16 eliminates the current dual accounting model for lessees, which distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance
leases and off-balance sheet operating leases. Instead, there is a single, on- balance sheet accounting model that is similar
to current finance lease accounting. Lessor accounting remains similar to current practice – i.e. lessors continue to classify
leases as finance and operating leases.
Management has assessed the impact of this standard on its operating lease relating to the leasing of its premises and has
concluded that in application of this standard, the Trust will initially recognise a right-of-use asset and lease liability based
on the on the discounted payments required under the lease, taking into account the lease term as determined under the
new standard. Management does not expect significant changes in operating profit, as the lease expense will be replaced
by interest and depreciation.
Specifically, the following will be affected:
• A lease asset will be recognised in the statement of financial position based on discounted payments under the lease.
• A lease liability will be recognised in the statement of financial position based on discounted payments under the lease.
• Depreciation will be calculated based on the lease term and be presented in the statement of comprehensive income.
• Interest will be calculated on the lease liability and disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income.
• The single line item “operating lease expense” in the statement of comprehensive income will be eliminated as a result
(if material).
The Trust will elect to use the exemptions proposed by the standard on lease contracts for which the lease terms ends within
12 months as of the date of initial application, and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value. The Trust
has leases of certain office equipment (i.e., personal computers, printing and photocopying machines) that are considered of
low value.
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2.3 Non-applicable standards, amendments and interpretations
The other remaining standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective have been assessed for
applicability to the Trust and management has concluded that they are not applicable to the business of the Trust and will
therefore have no impact on the future financial statements.
3. Property, plant and equipment

During the prior financial year, management assessed the useful lives and residual values of the property, plant and
equipment asset. The change in the estimate was accordingly recorded in the 2019 financial year as noted above.
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4. Intangible assets

5. Receivables

Fair value of accounts receivable
Receivables are all interest free. The fair value is considered to be equal to the carrying value and all receivables are
considered to be short term in nature. The impact of discounting is not considered to be material.
6. Other financial assets

7. Contract asset

The contract asset relates to SANAC Trust’s right to consideration for work completed but not yet billed to Global Fund as at
the reporting date. Once the project deliverable and expenditure report has been validated, management will bill the Global
Fund.
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8. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Funds are kept on short term deposit to earn interest as per investment policy. Funds are withdrawn as needed to meet
obligations. Interest earned on investments at 5.25% pa (2019: 5.25% pa).
9. Operating lease liability

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset.
This liability is not discounted.
10. Payables

Project allocation of accruals

Fair value of accounts payable
Payables are all interest free, the fair value is considered to be equal to the carrying amount and are considered to be
current due to their short-term nature.
11. Deferred income

Deferred income consists of designated programme funds (Grants). Designated programme funds received are deferred
and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when utilised. Designated funds are those funds, the use of which
is restricted by the donor for specified projects
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12. Provisions

COLAB
The provision has been raised for consulting costs which have not been invoiced at year end, the amount is based on the
outstanding balance as per the contract.
Leave pay
Management has estimated the expected costs of leave day entitled to employees as at year end based on their remaining
leave days at their salary level.
Office expenditure
A provision has been raised for expected office related costs which have not been invoiced at year end and where a higher
degree of uncertainty exists relating to the value of the obligation. This includes expenditure relating to the consulting
services rendered for the payroll function and the photocopier month-to-month costs.
Show me your number
Management has raised provision of a final payment for the demand generation campaign which is contracted to be carried
out by SMYN but have not been invoiced at year end.
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13. Income

14. Revenue

Included in the revenue recognised from contract with Global Fund is an amount of R 773 241 (2019:R 767 368) relating to
the Contract Asset (refer to note 7).
15. Other income

16. Operating deficit
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16. Operating deficit (continued)

17. Finance income

18. Finance costs

19. Cash (utilised in) generated from operations
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20. Commitments

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the company for its office property. The lease is negotiated for a term
of five years and rentals are fixed for five years with an escalation of 10% per year. No contingent rent is payable. Another
operating lease represents the lease payments payable by the Trust for its printers. The lease is negotiated on a term of 3
years with no escalation and rentals are fixed for 3 years. No contingent rent is payable.
At the end of financial year 2019/20 SANAC Trust has negotiated a new lease agreement with the landlord and the new lease
is expected to start from the 1st of June 2020. The calculations relating to the new lease agreement will be introduced in the
2020/21 financial statements.
Commitments relating to programs
Commitments consists of contracts entered into before year end that do not lead to a constructive or legal obligation at year
end. Funding for these commitments have been confirmed.

21. Related parties

22. Trustees remuneration
The Trust Deed provides that the trustees shall not be remunerated for any professional services provided to the Trust. It is
confirmed that no remuneration has been paid to the trustees listed in the Report of the Board of Trustees in the reporting
period.

88

23. Categories of financial instruments
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23. Categories of financial instruments (continued)

24. Risk management
Financial risk management
The Trust’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Trust’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets, exchange rate, interest
rate and political climate and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Trust’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by the finance department under policies approved by the board. The board provides written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk and
investment of excess liquidity.The audit and risk committee monitors compliance to risk management policies and evaluates
the risk environment of the Trust.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust will not be able to meet its financial obligations as the fall due.The Trust’s risk to
liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The Trust manages liquidity risk through an ongoing
review of future commitments and funding available.
The table below analyses the Trust’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

Interest rate risk
The Trust’s income and operating cash flows are linked to the market interest rates. The Trust invest surplus cash on call
and investment accounts. Its exposure to interest rate risk is however limited by virtue of the fixed rate that surplus cash is
invested at.
As of 31 March 2020, the majority of cash and cash equivalents comprised of interest bearing assets.
Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that the counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the
Trust.
Credit risk consists mainly of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and other financial assets. The Trust only deposits cash
with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party.
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Foreign exchange risk
The Trust is exposed to currency risk by virtue of having long term contracts with foreign donors, which is the risk that arises
as a result of changes in exchange rates. The exposure to currency risk is limited by virtue of the limited transactions with
these donors. Transaction dates and settlement dates are kept close together.
25. Fair value information
Fair value hierarchy
The levels are defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted unadjusted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Trust can access at
measurement date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or
indirectly. Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Levels of fair value measurements
Level 2
Recurring fair value measurements

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values
Unit-linked investments relates to units held at collective investment schemes and are priced monthly. The prices are
obtained from the collective investment scheme management companies for the particular scheme and are based on
quoted prices that are publicly available.
26. Going concern
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
27. Events after the reporting period
The first cases of the COVID-19 virus were reported in South Africa in March 2020 and not long after that, a 21-day
nationwide lock-down was implemented by the Government starting 26 March 2020. The Government has since extended
the lock-down for a further 180 days at different lock down levels up to level 1. The Trustee Boards’ forecast and projections
assume that there will not be a significant impact on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern during and post
the lock-down period. Management is closely evaluating the impact of COVID-19 on the Trust’s business. At this time we
are on level 1 of lockdown and we have not suffered any material impact. However, the outbreak continues to be fluid and
uncertain, making it impossible to forecast the final impact it could have on the global financial markets and economy, and
in turn, our business, liquidity and financial position.
28. Taxation
SANAC Trust has been granted Public Benefit Organisation (PBO) status under section 30(3) the Income Tax Act No 58 of
1962. The registration has been granted retrospectively from 12 September 2002. SANAC Trust is therefore exempt form
income tax under section 10(1)(cN) of the Income Tax Act.

91

DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited
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